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Zicom Group Limited

Chairman’s Message

Beating New Paths

"The only limit to our realization of tomorrow will be our doubts of today."
-- Franklin D. Roosevelt

Dear Shareholders,

The Group has been confronted with unprecedentaideclges. The Group’s once biggest revenue edirer,
marine offshore sector, has encountered seriousrseifactors impacting the industry directly legdio
surplus capacity and uncertainties. The main ceugeopolitical. It may take another 2-3 years beeftemand
resurges. Although the Group’s other revenue stsdaroonstruction and precision engineering arevegng

in strength these are unable to cover the sladgkeénmarine offshore sector. Gestation costs thetidie
commercial development of the medtech investmemgsegpected to compound the impact against Group’s
results for another 1-2 years.

Re-structuring

The Board has decided that a structural approaelgisred to strengthen focus and achieve coshguitithout
undermining strength. One of the major considenatis the commercial development and gestatiors ast
its medtech investments which annually amount toentioan S$4.0m. This will increase in the nextyeadrs
to drive scalability and profitability.

The Group has initially intended to cluster the taetl portfolio companies together to go for anahpublic
listing (IPO). ZIG Innovations Group Private Limit€¢ZIPL) had been formed for this purpose and wdwld
all the investments in the cluster. After sevemtgiiactions with potential strategic investorbgais been decided
that direct investments into each portfolio compamuld generate better valuations. The value oflB@
would have been based on the sum-of-parts. We thavefore focused on new external investments tijrec
into the portfolio companies. This strategic stelpwalidate valuations of the Group’s investmerithe Group
has therefore decided to defer the IPO of the nsbdtempanies as a cluster. Most of the portfolimganies
have been held under Zicom MedTacc Private Lim(#dT), a medtech incubator. ZMT would have become
another portfolio company under ZIPL to focus otuipation as a business activity. As the IPO ofleeltech
cluster has been deferred, it has not been foucelsary to place the medtech portfolio companidsunlPL
but to remain in ZMT.

Demerger

The Group has reviewed the new realities in seettingoest paths to maximise value. In continuinpdiul

the medtech investments in the Group will necetgsttae Group to continue being impacted by theagiest

and commercial development costs of more than S$dear for at least the next 1-2 years. Continfoding

will also be required. The Group’s business dimtivill become increasingly difficult to differeate due to

the growing difference in the nature of the bussess The Group’s medtech investments are maintytise
innovations which require a dynamic contemporarynén resource structure to be maintained. Its human
resource reward schemes are inevitably differefimgaforging uniform group policy impractical.

To enhance shareholders value, the Group has detiddemerge the medtech investments from our core
businesses made up of marine offshore oil andagastruction equipment and precision engineerincpra
MedTacc Private Limited has changed its name to\é@tures Private Limited (ZIGV) as a holding compa

of the various medtech portfolio companies. Therersthare capital of ZIGV will be distributed inespe to

all the existing shareholders of the Company irstirae ratio as their shareholdings in ZGL. Afterdemerger

the Group and ZIGV will operate as two independsntities with the same shareholders in both estifibiey

will be positioned to pursue more focused diretiodependently.

Zicom Group Limited (“ZGL") will continue to be lisd on ASX. ZIGV will, in the immediate future, ba
unlisted public company registered in Singaporet Bemerger your Board expects the ZGL'’s sharestéin
a net book value of A$0.23 per share. The Boartetbee believes that the present market price d3.082
per share, which is below net book value, is npeeted to be reduced any further.
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Chairman’s Message

Impending Board Changes

Board changes will be carried out. | will step doasithe Group MD on 31 December 2018 and will remai
an executive Chairman for the next 3 years, aetiteof which the position will be reviewed. | witicus on
strategic directions, mentoring and managing swioest all levels. At my request my pay has beeren
for 11 years since 2007. From January 2019, Ifuither reduce my pay by 30%. | will concurrenthadr the
board of ZIGV as a non-executive chairman.

Mr Kok Yew Sim, at present a Group’s executive cliog, will take over as the Group MD and will be
designated as Group CEO. Kok Yew who is currentiyegecutive director in ZIGV will remain as a non-
executive director. Mr Kok Hwee Sim who is a Graupxecutive director and currently CEO of ZIGV wiill
remain a non-executive director of the Group. Kaked will be fully responsible to raise new capitalZIGV

to drive growth and expansion as its Group CEOQJbtmy Lim the Group’s FC will be appointed an exiseu
director of the Group. Jenny will remain a non-exe® director of ZIGV.

A profile of each of the above directors is givaritie Annual Report.

The Group will concurrently be carrying out Boasthewal. The intention is to eventually average détven
Board’s age from 65 to below 60 and that of indeleen directors from 75 to 65. This takes cognizarfabe
needs of the prevailing disruptive technologica¢ aghich the Group embraces. The Group believes that
experiences of Board members should be contempauane

Prospects

The Group has always adopted a judicious finarmpidicy with a low gearing ratio. The Group embraces
changes. These attributes will be maintained. $¢w&etbacks notwithstanding, the Group continues to
steadfastly maintain its course and, where necgsseke changes to its path to stay relevant ardtheeve

its long term objectives. The Board is confiddmttgiven the changes made, the Group’s recoveryea
expedited.

Appreciation

It has been challenging timeBoard members, Group’s management and employees tigan to the
unprecedented challenges facing the Group. Onottdasion | would also like to thank all of them and
shareholders for their continuing support. We ltmlvard to enhance shareholders value with theuetstring
and initiatives undertaken.

G L Sim
Chairman
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Giok Lak Sim, FCPA
Chairman and Group Managing Director, Age 72

Experience and Expertise

Appointed to the Board on 5 April 1995. Chairman &fahaging Director of Zicom Group Limited and Extce
Chairman of all its subsidiaries. Experienced inljguiccounting, corporate development, strategioagament as
well as international trade.

Member of Strategic Advisory Panel, Diagnostics &epment Hub, A*Star ETPL
Member of Incubation Advisory Board, Singapore NagioEye Centre

Member, Board of Governors, UOB-SMU Asian Enterptissitute

Singapore Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the Yead\ktrial Products), 2008

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
Board Member of SPRING Singapore (1 April 2014 tdvBdrch 2018)

Special responsibilities

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Executive Chairman of all subsidiaries

Chairman of Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd

Chairman of Histolndex Pte Ltd

Director of BELKIN Laser Ltd

Chairman of Endofotonics Pte Ltd

Director of Pellucid Networks Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
101,267,13rdinary shares

Kok Hwee Sim, BSc, MSc
Executive Director, Age 40

Experience and expertise

Mr Kok Hwee Sim was appointed to the Board on 2¥éaber 2007. His corporate responsibilities inclbdaking

relationships, treasury management, mergers andgisitbions, strategic partnerships and fund raisidg the Chief
Executive Officer of ZIG Ventures Private Limitegart of his focus is to co-invest with Enterprisedgapore, a
Singapore statutory board, into promising earlgstaealthcare biomedical and sciences technologiapanies. Kok
Hwee leads a team of healthcare commercialisatiofegsionals to proactively build and support cédjjss and forge
strategic partnerships with the global healthca@sygstem. Mr Sim graduated with a Bachelor's degrdadustrial

Engineering and Operations Research from the Uniyes§Michigan, Ann Arbor, USA with Honours (MagrGum

Laude) and a Master’s degree in Financial Engingdiiom Columbia University, New York. He is the etd son of
the Chairman and Managing Director, Mr G L Sim arice&or of substantial shareholder, SNS HoldingsRd.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities

CEO of Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd

CEO of ZIG Ventures Private Limited
Director of Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd
Director of Histolndex Pte Ltd
Director of BELKIN Laser Ltd
Director of Endofotonics Pte Ltd
Director of Pellucid Networks Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
1,538,180 ordinary shares and 300,000 options
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Kok Yew Sim, BSc
Executive Director, Age 38

Experience and expertise

First appointed to the Board as Alternate Direatdvit Kok Hwee Sim on 5 July 2010 and made an ExeeWirector
on 25 September 2014. For many years, as the Chegfuive Officer of Sys-Mac Automation EngineeriRte Ltd
(Sys-Mac), Mr Kok Yew Sim has been instrumentalSiys-Mac Group’s growth journey, focusing on prongli
customised automation solutions and building cdjtigsiin Sys-Mac to support manufacturing for Geup’s medical
technologies companies. He has also successfdlthe Group’s investments in semiconductor teagyoio penetrate
the competitive markets. Going forward, he wiltds on innovating the Group’s existing core busassand seek
mergers and acquisitions to expand or unlock valoethese businesses. Mr Sim graduated with a Backelegree
in Electrical and Electronics Engineering from theiversity of Michigan with Honours (Summa Cum La)d He is
the second son of the Chairman and Managing Direbto G L Sim and Director of substantial shareten)dSNS
Holdings Pte Ltd.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities

CEO of Sys-Mac Automation Engineering Pte Ltd asditbsidiaries
Deputy Chairman of iPtec Pte Ltd

Director of Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd

Director of Emage Vision Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
1,350,253 ordinary shares and 300,000 options

Independent Directors

Yian Poh Lim, BSc, MSc
Independent Director, Age 72

Experience and expertise

Appointed to the Board on 24 July 2006. Mr Yian Rdim has more than 20 years of extensive experiémtbe
banking and finance industry. In 1993, he set upgnYPoh Associates, a financial consultancy andsinvent firm.
Since 2000, Mr Lim has been an Honorary Commeraiadigor to The Administrative Committee of JiaxingoBomic
Development Zone, China. He is also an Expert Céarsiulo Suzhou Vocational University.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
Chairman and Independent Director of Casa Holdingsted (appointed 4 November 2008)
Lead Independent Director of TTJ Holdings Limitegydointed 5 July 1996)

Special responsibilities

Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Member of Audit Committee

Non-Executive Director of Zicom Holdings Privatenited

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
488,000 ordinary shares



Zicom Group Limited

Board of Directors

Independent Directors

Frank Leong Yee Yew, MBA, FCA (England & Wales), FCA(Singapore)
Independent Director, Age 75

Experience and expertise

Appointed to the Board on 24 July 2006. Extensivpeeience in auditing, financial management and a@ie
secretarial work, having practised as a partnaniaudit firm and worked as a company secretargnfie manager and
financial controller in a leading property develagacompany and involved in acquisitions and mdg@relopments.
Mr Leong is also the Honorary Treasurer of The Gkiits Charities Association of Singapore.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
Independent Director of TTJ Holdings Limited (apgted 11 January 2010)

Special responsibilities

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Member of Audit Committee

Non-Executive Director of Zicom Holdings Privatenited

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
624,364 ordinary shares

lan Robert Millard, FCA, FAICD
Independent Director, Age 79

Experience and expertise

Appointed to the Board on 23 November 2006. Extensixperience in public accounting and corporatectagal
work. Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accourttawith 30 years as a partner in major accountingsf in
Queensland and a Fellow of the Australian Instiait€ompany Directors.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities
Chairman of Audit Committee
Non-Executive Director of Cesco Australia Limited

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
592,250 ordinary shares

Shaw Pao Sze
Independent Director, Age 74

Experience and expertise
Appointed to the Board on 19 February 2010. MrvHlao Sze holds a Master Foreign-Going Certificdte o

Competency and has extensive experiences in maritichestry from managing liner and ship charteriegvices,
corporate planning in one of the world’'s largesippimg lines and consultancy services for transgoigineering,
maritime and logistics planning for infrastructymejects.

Other current directorships and former directorshspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities
None

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
NIL
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Company Secretaries

Lim Bee Chun, Jenny, FCCA
Joint Company Secretary, Age 45

Experience and expertise

Ms Jenny Lim has been the Group’s Financial Comraince 2005. She is a Fellow of the AssociatibClartered
Certified Accountants from the United Kingdom siri@98. Ms Lim has over 10 years of audit and taeeepce in an
international public accounting firm prior to joirg the Group.

Other current directorships and former directorstspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities

Director of Zicom Private Limited

Director of Zicom MedTacc Private Limited

Joint Company Secretary of Zicom Holdings Privataited
Joint Company Secretary of Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd

Relevant interests in shares and options as at ddtsigning the Directors’ Report
944,563 ordinary shares and 200,000 options

Igor Sushko (Nick), MBA, FCPA, BBus, BSc
Joint Company Secretary, Age 52

Experience and expertise

Mr Sushko joined the Group in April 2017 as thedfice Manager of Cesco Australia Limited. He holiaater’s degree
in Business Administration and has been a Fello@ertified Practising Accountants, Australia sin€d2. Mr Sushko
has more than 20 years of experience in financehagement, treasury and international trade in pathlicly and

privately-owned businesses.

Other current directorships and former directorstspn last 3 years
None

Special responsibilities
Company Secretary of Cesco Australia Limited and CEsgopment Pty Limited

Relevant interests in shares and options as at d#tsigning the Directors’ Report
NIL
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Directors’ Report 2018

Your directors present their report on Zicom Groumitéd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (coliesly, the
“Group” or “consolidated entity”) for the year end&d June 2018.

Directors

The following persons were directors of Zicom Groupittéd during the financial year and up to the dstéhis
report. Directors were in office for this entire peti

Mr. G L Sim (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. K H Sim (Executive Director)

Mr. K'Y Sim (Executive Director)

Mr. Y P Lim (Independent)

Mr. F Leong (Independent)

Mr. I R Millard (Independent)

Mr. S P Sze (Independent)

Details of Directors’ qualifications, experience, @tlturrent directorship and responsibilities a@uded in the
“Board of Directors” section within the annual report

Principal Activities

The Group’s principal activities comprise the mamtdiring of deck machinery, gas metering statigas processing
plants, foundation equipment, concrete mixers ardigion engineered machinery, rental of foundagiqunipment,
supply of automation products and solutions, sumglynedtech equipment and products, medtech trdmrsla
services and services to the offshore marine, mil gas, construction, electronics, biomedical agdcalture
industries.

Consolidated Results
The Group recorded the following consolidated reglt$ng the year as compared with those of preweas:-

Key Financials Change Year ended Year ended
% 30 June 18 30 June 17

S$ million S$ million

Total revenue -13.8 81.51 94.52
Net loss after tax attributable to equity holderthe Parent +135.3 (20.87) (4.62)

The Group’s cash balances remain healthy. As atuB@ 2018, the Group’s total cash and bank balawees
S$9.74m as compared with S$18.59m as at 30 June 2017

Dividends
The Board has decided not to pay any dividendybs.

Review of Operations

The Group’s consolidated revenue for the full yise8$81.51m as compared with S$94.52m in the prewear, a
decrease of 13.8%. The Group’s full year net codat#d loss after tax attributable to members tdu8@: 2018 is
S$10.87m as compared with S$4.62m in the previoas g increase of 135.3%.

Loss per share for the year is Singapore 5.01 centpared to Singapore 2.13 cents in the previeas @n increase
of Singapore 2.88 cents.

Net tangible assets per share decreased from Sirgg@8P@8 cents to 25.31 cents per share.

Return on equity, based on average of the opemdgl®sing equity, for the year was -14.5% as coegéw -5.6%
in 2017.

The average rates for currency translation forsmations and cash flows are A$1 to S$1.0375 (2047.0898) for
the year ended 30 June 2018 and balances A$1 tOEHL(2017: S$1.0570) as at 30 June 2018, reftpatin
weakening AS.

The Group’s businesses, in particular the marinshoffe and oil and gas segment, for the year judedn
encountered one of the greatest challenges. Denaarttld marine segment dropped significantly by an&0%
and the oil and gas sector saw projects being d&ldye causes are both economic and geopolitelatter being
a greater factor. Regrettably we do not anticipatesignificant recovery in the marine sector fd3 ears although
the land-based oil and gas sector is experienégmg ®f recovery as delayed projects are being asdard
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The construction and precision engineering segnmedshown improvements but these were not suftibdecover
the losses caused by the continuing slump in thémeaoil and gas sectors and the scaled up gestatists relating
to market development of the technology sector.

The Group has for the last 12 months engaged wittvaat parties on unlocking values on its technology
investments. It has come to the conclusion thab#st way to maximise valuations for the Group iddmerge the
medical technology investments from the core bissies of the Group. We believe that in this way eadividual
portfolio company can scale up and unlock its valite new external investments, engage in a trade@gbublic
listing at its own pace commensurate with its develept and valuation. The technology investments aeye
impacted the group with S$4.0m in gestation costdHe year just ended and it is expected this isokkely to
increase further for the next 2-3 years as marggategvelopment is accelerated.

Your Board has decided that a demerger of the tdohpdousinesses will take the form of a capital i by
pro-rata distribution in specie to all sharehold&ve plan to consolidate the medtech businesse®irg non-listed
public holding entity whose shares will be distrilwité resolution on this will be put to shareholdesdpproval

in the upcoming AGM. The demerger will enable managent@ focus on their respective business, eliminate
continuing gestation costs, and save the Groupdufunding for such investments. The technologe&timents
will seek alternative mode of funding independenthef Group.

Future new investments in the Group will be focusedeveloping lateral growth of existing core busssss These
include our investments on dual fuel technologytfe@ marine offshore sector, and automation rejattinoil and
gas and industrial applications that strengthercapability and catalyse our growth going forwardine with this
strategy, the Group has, subsequent to year emubsgid of its investment in SAEdge Vision Solutions Bd
focused on vision development with a net gain of.6$1 This investment was made to advance lateraltgron
the precision engineering segment but has beerdftutake too long to gain traction and to achisw&ability on
its own.

Prospects for the coming year will remain very avading. Your Board is confident that the restruciyrivill help
to improve on the Group’s results and enhance shhtets’ value.

Segmental Revenue
The following is an analysis of the segmental reeenu

Segmental Revenue Change Year ended Year ended
% 30 June 18 30 June 17
S$ million S$ million
Offshore Marine, Oil & Gas Machinery -77.1 7.21 e
Construction Equipment +33.4 41.41 31.05
Precision Engineering & Technologies +2.5 30.95 .180
Industrial & Mobile Hydraulics +8.4 2.19 2.02

Offshore Marine, Oil & Gas Machinery

Demand for offshore marine, oil and gas machinecyaetesed by 77.1% in the full year as compared Wélptevious
year. Global geopolitical factors and potential éragars have increased uncertainties compoundinguatisn

caused by excess production capacity. The deprasseitnents are expected to last at least anotBeyeirs even
though oil prices have somewhat strengthened. Asutrehe Group is looking seriously into cost mgtand

diverting resources for alternative revenue stream.

We are, however, hopeful that the land-based oibasdsector is showing signs of improvements asidef projects
are being awarded. The Group has just secured Xfgajgolving gas regulating and metering statiam®unting
to S$15m and are confident more projects can haaeéavithin this coming financial year.

Construction Equipment

The construction sector in Singapore, the main stdidr our foundation equipment, had been flat. Haveour
foray into regional markets such as Malaysia, th#tigpines and Thailand are showing positive resthitg helped
bring this sector to profitability.

Demand for concrete mixers in Australia and Thailaad been stronger increasing their contributiorteedGroup.
We expect that the increase in infrastructure dgraknts in Australia and Thailand will continue tgpgort our
businesses to achieve profitability in these caestr
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Precision Engineering & Technologies

Demand for the precision engineering and technosoggetor increased by 2.5% in the full year as @vagwith
the previous year. The semiconductor market hasirezd strong and this has helped to maintain reprelarrs for
our semiconductor equipment. Demand for industridbmation had also resurged and we are hopefulttieat
momentum will be maintained in the coming year.

During the year, this segment has also restructiisetf to increase its focus on medical equipmenictvlis less
volatile. The precision engineering segment hachtee outsourcing contractor for various establishetlical

equipment manufacturers from Europe and USA priautoinvestments in medical technologies. Our invesitis
in medical technologies has contributed to its bdjpin this area that now includes engineeringgach products
raising its value chain. Its manufacturing cap&pi now FDA approved. The Group will continue tdlaoorate

with the various medtech portfolio companies onrmamsalength basis as is already a practice withen@moup.

Industrial & Mobile Hydraulics
This sector is made up of supply of hydraulic systirives and hydraulic services in support of cemegal core
business activities in hydraulic engineering. THeas not been any significant variation in thisrseqgt.

Financial Position
The Group’s financial position remains strong:-

Decrease As at 30 June 18 As at 30 June 17
Classification S$ million S$ million S$ million
Net assets 10.92 59.5 80.47
Net working capital 9.50 22.73 2.
Cash in hand and at bank 8.85 9.74 18.59

Gearing Ratio
The Group’s gearing ratio is 13.46% (2017: 0%). Gepratio has been arrived at by dividing our inséigearing
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents ovei tapital.

Return per Share
The Group’s earnings and net tangible assets pez sha as follows: -

Decrease 2018 2017

Classification Singapore Cents Singapore Cents Singapore Cents
Earnings per share 2.88 (5.01) (2.13)

The weighted average shares used to compute basingsaper share are 217,140,780 for this yeatlag@revious
year.

Decrease As at 30 June 18 As at 30 June 17

Classification Singapore Cents Singapore Cents Singapore Cents
Net tangible assets per share 4.97 25.31 30.28

Net tangible assets per share has decreased cdwe®dup’s operational loss for the year.

Capital Expenditure
For the year ending 30 June 2019, the Group dogsl@oto invest in any capital equipment.

Confirmed Orders
We have a total of S$37.8m (30 June 2017: S$21drstanding confirmed orders in hand on 30 June3281
breakdown of these outstanding confirmed orders feliows:-

S$m
Offshore Marine, Oil & Gas Machinery 15.6
Construction Equipment 9.0
Precision Engineering & Technologies 12.9
Industrial & Mobile Hydraulics 03
Total 37.8

These outstanding orders are scheduled for delivetlye financial year 2019. Prospects for onganders, save
for the marine offshore, are strengthening.
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Prospects

The global economic environment being impactedriprecedented geopolitical factors compounded bgtigeing
trade war between the world’s two largest economieslégsiorated amidst great uncertainties. The abehd has
become more challenging. Post demerger, while thaugseontinues to focus on vertical expansion, it will
concurrently consider, where necessary, investnamtechnology and products to catalyse the expargfighe
Group’s businesses laterally.

Subsequent Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Investment in Endofotonics Pte Ltd

On 28 August 2018, 1,058,201 ordinary shares wemdtedl to Zicom MedTacc Private Limited for a cash
consideration of S$222,000 pursuant to the sultsmmnipf a non-renounceable rights issue by EndofictoPte Ltd
(“Endofotonics”). As a result of this allotment, tBeoup’s interest in Endofotonics increased to 2439

Demerger of technology businesses

On 29 August 2018, the Board resolved to approvegesutn final approval by shareholders, for thepmses of
Section 256B of th€orporations Act 2001that the Company shall demerge Zicom MedTacca®ilzimited from
the Group, in a form of pro-rata capital reductigndistributing all the issued ordinary shares inafh MedTacc
Private Limited to the Company’s shareholders.

Disposal of SAEdge Vision Solutions Pte Ltd

On 31 August 2018, Sys-Mac Automation Engineerind Rt€“Sys-Mac”) completed the disposal of its 968y
interest in SAEdge Vision Solutions Pte Ltd (“SAEdgtS Emage Vision Pte Ltd (“EV”) for a consideratioh
S$3,473,000, satisfied by the allotment of 43,3%6viating shares to Sys-Mac, representing an eqoigrést of
14.88% in EV.

Zicom MedTacc Private Limited changed its name
On 7 September 2018, Zicom MedTacc Private Limiteghged its name to ZIG Ventures Private Limited.

Environmental Regulations

The Group is subject to environmental regulatiomslen State and Federal legislations. The Group shold
environmental licences for its manufacturing siteBrisbane. No significant material environmentatidents
occurred during the year.

Meetings of directors
The number of meetings of the Company’s boardrefotiors and of each board committee held sincitténnual
General Meeting, and the number of meetings attehgedch director were:

Meetings of Committees

Full meetings of Audit Nomination &

directors Remuneration

A B A B A B
Giok Lak Sim 4 4 - - 1 1
Kok Hwee Sim 4 4 - - - -
Kok Yew Sim 2 4 - - - -
Yian Poh Lim 4 4 3 3 1 1
Frank Leong Yee Yew 4 4 3 3 1 1
lan R Millard 4 4 3 3 - -
Shaw Pao Sze 4 4 - -

A = Number of meetings attended
B = Number of meetings held during the time thedoeheld office or was a member of the committegnduthe
year

Insurance or indemnification of officers
During the financial year, Zicom Group Limited paidoeemium of A$8,415 to insure against liabilitiestbé
directors and officers of the reporting entity.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that mayirfmirred in defending civil or criminal proceedinthat may be
brought against directors or officers in their a@pes as officers of the reporting entity.

The policy also provides for certain statutory firiacurred by the reporting entity or officers, gmmtection for

claims made alleging a breach of professional duitying out of an act, error or omission of theiggffs of the
reporting entity.

-10 -
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Indemnification of auditors

To the extent permitted by law, the Company haseshjte indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young Austaalas part
of its terms of its audit engagement agreemennagalaims by third parties arising from the audib payment has
been made to indemnify Ernst & Young during or sitteend of the financial year.

Retirement, election and continuation in office of @ectors
Messrs Frank Leong Yee Yew and Kok Hwee Sim retire gtiom and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Directors’ relevant interests in Zicom Group Limited

In accordance with S300(11) of tl®rporations Act 2001the relevant interests of the directors in tharet and
options of Zicom Group Limited as at the date of tieiport are unchanged to those disclosed withiretineneration
report as at 30 June 2018.

-11 -
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Remuneration report (Audited)

This remuneration report outlines the remuneragiosangements of the Group in accordance with theirements
of theCorporations Act 200and its Regulations. This information has beeritaddas required by section 308(3C)
of the Act.

Key management personnel (KMP) of the Group are ddfas those persons having authority and respétysfbr
planning, directing and controlling the major aitiés of the Group, directly or indirectly, includjrany director
(whether executive or otherwise) of the Parent. Detdithe KMP are set out in the following tables:

(i)

(ii)

Directors

G L Sir (Chairman and Managing Director)
K H Sim (Executive Director)

K'Y Sim (Executive Director)

Y P Lim (Independent Director)

F Leonc (Independent Director)

I R Millard (Independent Director)

S P Sze (Independent Director)

Senior Executives
J L Sim

H S Tany

(Joint Managing Director of Zicom Private Limitethd Director of Zicom Holdings
Private Limited)
(Joint Managing Director of Zicom Private Limitethd Director of Zicom Holdings

Private Limited)

There were no changes to KMP after the reporting dat before the date the financial report was aigttb for

issue.

The remuneration report is set out under the follgwnain headings:

A

B
C
A

Principles used to determine the nature and amafurgimuneration
Service Agreements
Details of remuneration

Principles used to determine the nature and amowfiremuneration

A combined Nomination and Remuneration Committeedleas formed. The members of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee comprise of Mr Y P LinChsirman with Mr Frank Leong and Mr G L
Sim as members. The Nomination and Remuneration Gieenhad approved the Service Agreement of
the Group Managing Director, Mr G L Sim and this wasssguently ratified by the full board.

The key principle of Zicom Group Limited’s remunéoatpolicy is to ensure remuneration is set atleve
that will attract, motivate, reward and retain persgrto improve business results, having regarchéo t
Company’s financial performance and financial posit

Non-Executive Directors

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is determibgdhe directors within the maximum amount
approved by the shareholders. Each Non-Executivecireeceives a base fee of A$25,000 for being a
director of the Company. An additional fee of A&X)0s paid for each Board Committee of which a Non-
Executive Director sits and A$5,000 if the Directerai Chair of a Board Committee. The payment of
additional fees for serving on committees recogntee additional time commitment and responsibsiti

of the Non-Executive Directors who serve on one orensoib-committees. There is also an attendance fee
of A$1,000 for each meeting attended by the Non-Bikeeirector.

Non-Executive Directors are eligible to participate the Zicom Employee Share and Option Plan
(“ZESOP"). The Board considers that there shouldiappropriate mix of remuneration comprising cash
and securities for all Directors to link the remwatiem of the Directors to the financial performaté¢he
Company and to align the interests of shareholdedsall Directors. No options were granted to Non-
Executive Directors during the financial year andaare proposed for consideration at the 2018 Annual
General Meeting.

The Board recommends that total directors’ fees\fmn-Executive Directors for the financial year ergdin
30 June 2019 be fixed at a maximum sum of A$150(880248,000) at the same level as the previous year.
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Executive directors and senior executives

All remuneration paid to executive directors and@eexecutives comprises the following components:
. Base pay and benefits;

. Short term incentives;

. Other remuneration such as superannuation; and

. Participation in the Zicom Employee Share and Opftam.

Base pay

The level of base pay is set so as to providee Ewemuneration which is appropriate to the posiand

is competitive in the market. The remuneratiothefexecutive directors is reviewed annually byBbard
and the remuneration of senior executives is rewieaenually or on promotion by the managing
director(s).

Benefits
Senior executives receive benefits including heattth disability insurance and car allowances.

Short term incentives

The objective of short term incentives is to rewtrel senior executives of the Group with performance
bonus tied to a minimum profit threshold of theugga@ompanies. Such bonuses are paid within 90 days
after the year end and completion of audit. Theimiim profit threshold is the lower of S$500,000 or
15% of total shareholders’ funds outstanding atethié of the previous financial year.

B Service Agreements

Group Managing Director

The Group Managing Director, Mr G L Sim is directly @loyed by Zicom Holdings Private Limited
(“ZHPL") and has renewed his service agreement with [ZFfP another 5 years with effect from 1 July
2016. The Group and Mr Sim are required to givéhedher at least 6 months’ notice in the termimratb
the service agreement. Under the terms of his seagceement, Mr Sim continues to be appointedeas th
Zicom Group Limited (“ZGL") Group Managing Directoré&hairman as well as the Executive Chairman
of all the operating subsidiaries.

Mr Sim is entitled to an annual review of his mowtsdlary if the company’s results exceed 15% return
shareholders’ funds as at the end of that finarygat. Mr Sim has frozen his monthly salary sin@872

Mr Sim will continue to draw the monthly salary aetB007 level for the next 5 years from 1 July 2016
and waive all salary increments. Apart from this,aHer benefits, terms and conditions in his servic
agreement remain unchanged.

Mr Sim is paid a monthly salary and a car allowandeSim is entitled to a minimum performance bonus
of 5% but not exceeding 10% of the pre-tax constdid profits of ZHPL upon achieving agreed minimum
profit targets, being the only criterion for histidement. Mr Sim is entitled to convert part ofh
performance bonus up to 50% of the amount payabdeshares of ZGL at the average of the closingpric
of the last 5 trading days before the end of thevemt financial year. However, such entitlement ningst
exercised within 7 working days after the financishiyend. For the financial year just ended, Mr ®as
not entitled to any bonus as the minimum profigétmwas not achieved.

Pursuant to Mr Sim’s service agreement with ZHPL jshaot paid any salary or fees by ZGL, Cesco
Australia Limited (“CAL”") or any other group compasi In the event CAL achieves the minimum pre-tax
profits, Mr Sim will be paid a bonus not exceedidg 6f CAL’s profits. For the financial year just emle
CAL has achieved its profit target. However, givenc¢heent challenging business environment, Mr Sim
has decided to offset his CAL bonus entitlement of 387 7against the remuneration paid to him by ZHPL
during the year and will therefore waive paymentuafhsan incentive from ZHPL

Senior Executives (directors of group companies)

Senior executives in key decision making are engdloynder rolling contracts. The company and these
senior executives are required to give each othaplths’ notice to terminate the service contratke
senior executives are entitled to a monthly satary a car allowance. Each year, each of the subgidia
companies allocates 10% of their pre-tax profitsrupchieving agreed minimum profit targets, bemey t
only criterion for allocation of bonus to its elijg executives, as a “bonus pool”. The maximuntlentient
capped for eligible executives ranges from 2.5%%oof the pre-tax profits. Each year, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee will decide the proportiayable to each of these eligible executivestase
on the number of eligible executives entitled ® plool and any recommendation by management to dewar
any outstanding senior executives who are otherwiseligible contractually, to be specially rewarded.
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The decisions made by the Committee are deemesl210@% of their entitlement for the respectiveibliy
executive for the relevant financial year.

These senior executives are also entitled to copeet of their performance bonus up to 50% ofatimunt
payable into shares in ZGL at the average of theirgyoprices of the last 5 trading days before tie e
the relevant financial year. However, such entitleimenst be exercised within 7 working days after the
financial year end. For the financial year justeshchone of the executives exercised the opti@monwert
part of their performance bonus into ZGL shares.

Zicom Employee Share and Option Plan
Options are granted under the Zicom Employee Shat®gtion Plan (“ZESOP”) which was approved by
shareholders on 23 November 2006.

A person is eligible to participate in ZESOP if hesbe is a director or an employee of a group compan
Approved share options are first allocated to eachig company based on its profit contribution te th
Group for the past 3 years adjusted by factors @gclpotential contribution to the Group and past
conversion rates. These options are then grantethpdoyees based on individual performance andethos
with potentials in that group company. This initigtistrengthens the Group’s position to retain atrdcit
talent so as to expand and grow to improve the Geopgrformance and enhance shareholders’ value.

The Board may at any time make invitations to blgiemployees to participate in the ZESOP. The
invitation will specify the total number of optioeach eligible employee may acquire, the exercige pr
period and exercise conditions. All options shgiklaupon the expiry of the exercise period as ahéted

by the Board or 10 years after grant of the optitiichever is earlier.

If an eligible participant ceases to be employediy member of the group, his or her options dapHe.

In the event an eligible participant, who, by reasbdeath, or physical or mental incapacity or sattter
reasons as the Board may approve, ceases to ligiategarticipant before the participant has eissd

all vested options under ZESOP, then those optiba#f sontinue to be capable of being exercised in
accordance with the rules.

Options granted under ZESOP carry no voting righsntitlement to dividends.

Options are granted at no cost to employees. Whkentised, each option is convertible into one adin
share which shall be credited as fully paid up amdkrequally with all other fully paid ordinary skar

No share options were granted or exercised duringuhent financial year.

There were 2,610,000 unissued ordinary shares wmt@&ms at the reporting date and the date of this
report.

Company Performance

The table below shows the performance of the Grouthfopast 5 financial years:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Earnings per share (Australian cents) (4.83) (2.08) (0.95) 1.04 1.65
Dividends per share (Australian cents) — 0.15 0.45 0.70 0.90
Closing share price (Australian cents) 9.6 12.0D 0a7.| 20.50 22.00
Net tangible assets per share (Australian cents) 2251 28.65 32.37 33.37 29.64
Exchange rates used for currency translation
Average rate for EPS 1.0375 1.0498 1.0106 1.0864 521.1
Closing rate for NTA per share 1.0076 1.0570 1.0026 .0323 | 1.1739

-14 -



Zicom Group Limited

Directors’ Report 2018

Remuneration report (Audited)

C Details of remuneration (audited)
Details of the remuneration to the directors arkily management personnel of Zicom Group Limitedtfe years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 aretsettbe following tables. All performance related
bonus and share-based payments listed in theusoe2100% vested for both financial years.

Post-
2018 Short Term Employee Benefits Eme;%rf"ilem Share-Based Payments
Other Short- Performance Consisting
Cash Salary Non-Monetary ~ Term Employee Bonus Paid in  Share Performance Of Share

Name and Fees Bonus Benefits Benefits Superannuation Share option: Total Relater Options

S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ % %
Non-Executive Directors
Y P Lim 38,388 - - - - - - 38,388 - -
F Leong 35,275 - - - - - - 35,275 - -
I R Millard 36,313 - - - - - - 36,313 - -
S P Sze 31,125 - - - - - - 31,125 - -
Sub-total Non-Executive Directors 141,101 - - - - - - 141,101
Executive Directors
G L Sim — Chairman 432,000 - - 24,000 5,400 - - 461,400 - -
KH Sim 169,200 - - 12,000 12,240 - - 193,440 - -
K'Y Sim 151,200 - - 44,400 12,240 - - 207,840 - -
Sub-total Executive Directors 752,400 — - 80,400 29,880 - - 862,680
Other Key Management Personnel
JL Sin? 216,000 - - 21,600 8,280 - - 245,880 - -
H S Tang? 181,200 - - 14,400 6,900 - - 202,500 - -
Sub-total Other Key Management Personnel 397,200 - - 36,000 15,180 - - 448,380
Grand total 1,290,701 - - 116,400 45,060 - - 1,452,161

(1) J L Sim is the joint managing director of ZicomvRte Limited and a director of Zicom Holdings Ptevaimited
(2) H S Tang is the joint managing director of Ziconv&te Limited and a director of Zicom Holdings Ratie Limited
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Post-
2017 Short Term Employee Benefits Eme;%rf"ilem Share-Based Payments
Other Short- Performance
Cash Salary Non-Monetary =~ Term Employee Bonus Paid in  Share
Name and Fees Bonus Benefits Benefit: Superannuation Share option:s Total
S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$
Non-Executive Directors
Y P Lim 37,793 - - - - - 37,793
F Leong 34,643 - - - - - 34,643
I R Millard 34,643 - - - - - 34,643
S P Sze 30,444 - - - - - 30,444
Sub-total Non-Executive Directors 137,523 - - - - - 137,523
Executive Directors
G L Sim — Chairman 432,000 - - 24,000 5,400 - 461,400
KH Sim 168,588 - - 12,000 12,240 6,176 199,004
K'Y Sim 150,571 - - 44,400 12,240 6,176 213,387
Sub-total Executive Directors 751,159 - - 80,400 29,880 12,352 873,791
Other Key Management Personnel
JL Sim? 216,252 20,000 - 21,600 6,480 2,770 267,102
H S Tand? 181,411 20,000 - 14,400 7,650 2,770 226,231
Sub-total Other Key Management Personnel 397,663 40,000 - 36,000 14,130 5,540 493,333
Grand total 1,286,345 40,000 - 116,400 44,010 17,892 1,504,647

(1) J L Sim is the joint managing director of ZicomvRte Limited and a director of Zicom Holdings Ptevaimited
(2) H S Tang is the joint managing director of Ziconv&te Limited and a director of Zicom Holdings Ratig Limited

-16 -

Performance

Relate(

%

7.5
8.8

Consisting
Of Share
Options

%

3.1
2.9

1.0
1.2



Zicom Group Limited

Directors’ Report 2018

Remuneration report (Audited)
Details of share options to key management personnel

Options granted to, vested, exercised or expireshgtine years 2018 and 2017 as well as their oudstgroptions
held as at year end are shown in the tables below.

30 June 2018

Value of  Value of

Balance at Options Balanceat  options  options Not
1July 2017 Granted exercised Expired 30 June 2018 granted expired  Exercisable Exercisable
Directors S$ S$
G L Sim - - - - - - - - -
K H Sim 300,000 — — — 300,000 — — 300,000 —
KY Sim 300,000 — — — 300,000 — — 300,000 _
Y P Lim - - - - - - - - -
F Leong - - — - - — - - —
I R Millard - - - - - - - - -
S P Sze - — - - — - - — -
Executives
JL Sim 200,000 — - — 200,000 — — 200,000 —
H S Tang 200,000 — — — 200,000 — — 200,000 —
1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 — - 1,000,000 —
30 June 2017
. Value of  Value of
Balance at Options Balance at  options  options Not
1July 2016 Granted exercised Expired 30 June 2017 granted expired Exercisable  Exercisable
Directors S$ S$
G LSim — — - - - - - - —
K'H Sim 300,000 - - - 300,000 - - 300,000 -
K'Y Sim 300,000 - — - 300,000 - - 300,000 —
Y P Lim — - - — - - - — -
F Leong - — — - - - - - —
I R Millard - - - - - - - - -
S P Sze — — - - — - - — -
Executives
J L Sim 200,000 — - - 200,000 - — 200,000 —
H S Tang 200,000 - — - 200,000 — — 200,000 —
1,000,000 - — — 1,000,000 - — 1,000,000 -

The above options were granted under the Zicom &yepl Share and Option Plan which was approved émekblders
on 23 November 2006.

There were no alterations to the terms and conditidroptions granted as remuneration since thaintgtate.
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Shareholdings of key management personnel as &irg92018 and 30 June 2017 are as follows:

30 June 2018

Balance as at Granted as Options Purchases Balance as at
1 July 2017 remuneration exercised 30 June 2018
Directors
G L Sim 94,753,137 - - 6,514,000 101,267,137
K H Sim 1,538,180 - - - 1,538,180
K'Y Sim 1,350,253 - - - 1,350,253
Y P Lim 488,000 - - - 488,000
F Leong 624,364 - - - 624,364
I R Millard 592,250 - - - 592,250
S P Sze - - - - -
Executive
JL Sim 6,687,767 - - - 6,687,767
H S Tang 2,111,339 — - — 2,111,339
108,145,290 - — 6,514,000 114,659,290
30 June 2017
Balance as at Granted as Options Purchases Balance as at
1 July 2016 remuneration exercised 30 June 2017
Directors
G L Sim 89,345,442 - - 5,407,695 94,753,137
K H Sim 1,538,180 - - - 1,538,180
K'Y Sim 1,350,253 - - - 1,350,253
Y P Lim 488,000 - - - 488,000
F Leong 624,364 - - - 624,364
I R Millard 592,250 - - - 592,250
S P Sze - - - - -
Executive
JL Sim 6,687,767 - - - 6,687,767
H S Tang 2,111,339 — - — 2,111,339
102,737,595 — — 5,407,695 108,145,290

There were no other transactions and balanceskeitimanagement personnel and their related paltiesg the year.
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Legal Proceedings

No person has applied for leave of Court to brirecpedings on behalf of the consolidated entitypantervene in
any proceedings to which the consolidated entity jigarty for the purpose of taking responsibilitylmhalf of the
consolidated entity for all or any part of thoseqaedings.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
A copy of the auditor’s signed independence dedtarads required under Section 307C of @mrporations Act
2001is attached to this report.

Non-Audit Services

Tax compliance services was provided by the entdyditor, Ernst & Young Australia. The directors aatisfied
that the provision of non-audit services is conpatwith the general standard of independence foitens imposed
by theCorporations Act 2001 The nature and scope of non-audit services gealvidid not compromise auditor’s
independence.

Ernst & Young Australia received or due to receivefibilowing amounts for the provision of services:

S$
Assurance related 148,363
Tax compliance services 19,764
168,127

Rounding of Amounts

The Company is an entity to which the ASIC Corparadi (Rounding in Financial/Directors’ Reports) Iostent
2016/191 applies and accordingly, the amounts guedan the financial statements and directorsbrepave been
rounded to the nearest S$1,000 unless otherwisslstat

This report was made in accordance with a resoluidhe Board of Directors.

GL Sim
Chairman/Group Managing Director
28 September 2018
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111 Eagle Street Fax: +61 7 3011 3100
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working world

Auditor’'s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Zicom Group
Limited
As lead auditor for the audit of Zicom Group Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2018, |

declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Zicom Group Limited and the entities it controlled during the financial
year.

é/(/l,g'){' A %Mj

Ernst & Young

Tom du Preez
Partner
28 September 2018

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Introduction

The Board of Directors is responsible for the Corffaovernance of Zicom Group Limited and its cdfgrbentities
(referred to in this document as “the Company”). Threctors are focused on fulfilling their respdibiies individually
and as a Board to all of the Company’s stakeholddtis. involves recognition of and a need to adopigiples of good
corporate governance having regard to the ASX Catpdgovernance Council (CGC) published guidelinesedlsas its
corporate governance principles and recommendations

The Company has reviewed its Corporate Governanceeguoes over the past year to ensure compliande thvé
principles of good corporate governance.

A description of the Company’s practices in compdyinith the principles is set out below.

Principle 1: Laying Solid Foundations for Managementand Oversight

Role of Board and management
The role of the Board is to lead and oversee theagement and direction of the Company and its cdatt@ntities.

After appropriate consultation with executive magragnt, the Board:

- defines and sets the business and strategic olgectit monitors performance and achievement o$ehe
Company'’s objectives;

- oversees the reporting on matters of compliance @dtporate policies and laws, takes responsiliityisk
management processes and reviews executive manaigehtkee Company;

- monitors and approves business plans, financidépeance and budgets, available resources, majptata
expenditure, capital raising, acquisition and divesit of Company’s assets;

- maintains liaison with the Company’s auditor; and

- reports to shareholders.

Candidates for election or re-election as a Director

The Company is guided by the Board for the selectiomination and appointment of Directors. As drthis process
the Board ascertains the qualifications and expeeethat a potential candidate possesses. Baakgjrobecks, as
appropriate, are carried out before a person isiafgd by the Board. In addition, the Board wilhntiaue to provide
shareholders with all material information in itesgession relevant to any decision to elect olegt-@ Director by
inclusion in the Notice of Meeting.

Written agreements with Directors
The Executive Chairman, Executive Directors and &eBikecutives have letters of appointments or sergontracts
describing their terms of office, duties, rightslaasponsibilities.

The other Directors do not have contracts withGoenpany that give them any form of certain tenunee @ird of the
Directors retire annually and are free to seekeetion by shareholders.

Company Secretaries
The Joint Company Secretaries are directly accoletalihe Board through the Chairman.

Diversity Policy

The Company does not have a written diversity pdhigyrecognises the importance of benefitting fadhavailable talent
regardless of gender, age, ethnicity and cultuaakground. The Company promotes an environmentuzivel to the
appointment of well qualified employees, senior agagment and board candidates so that there is@pateodiversity to
maximise the achievement of corporate goals.

The Company has employees including executives fdiversified cultural background and nationalitiascls as
Australians, Bangladeshis, Chinese, Indians, IndanssFilipinos, Malaysians, Burmese, New Zealand&irgyaporeans
and Thais. In addition, approximately 20% of thenpany’s workforce is made up of female employees.

Performance Review

The Chairman is responsible for evaluating the perémce of its senior executives, committees aniyiohaal Directors.
The review process is currently informal, generaliyne through a meeting with the Chairman of the &oafhe
performance is reviewed regularly against both mnesble and qualitative indicators. The performacréteria against
which directors and executives are assessed gredliwith the financial and non-financial objective Zicom Group
Limited. Directors whose performance is considyamsatisfactory may be asked to retire.

The review process as disclosed above was undartakhe current reporting period.
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Principle 2: Structure the Board to Add Value

Composition of Board
The names of the Directors of the Company in officthe date of this annual report are set outértinectors’ report on
page 7.

Details of the members of the Board, their expeBerapertise, qualifications, term of office andependent status are
included in the “Board of Directors” section withtime annual report.

The composition of the Board has been determineab o provide the Company with a broad base of inglususiness,
technical, administrative and corporate skill ardezience considered necessary to represent Shdeehand fulfil the
business objectives of the Company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A combined Nomination and Remuneration Committeebieas established comprising the following members:
¢ MrY P Lim (Chairman)
e MrGLSim
¢ Mr Frank Leong

The Committee is responsible for the selection, nativn and appointment of Directors, monitoring #iéls and
expertise of current Board members, consider suicceptanning issues, assessing the independeniiemfExecutive
Directors and identifying the likely order of reiment by rotation of Directors. In addition, tremnittee formulates the
remuneration policies for the Board Members and MammaDirector of the Group.

For details on the number of meetings of the Notionaand Remuneration Committee held during the yeal the
attendees at those meetings, please refer to @agkthie Directors’ Report.

Board Skills Matrix
The Board seeks to ensure as a minimum the Boarll's slatrix includes:

(a) Each Director must be capable of making a valuedteribution to the effective operations of the Campand
Board’s deliberations and processes;

(b) Directors must collectively have the necessanjiskinowledge and experience to understand the oskhe
Company and to ensure that the Company is managetappropriate way taking into account these riakd

(c) All Directors must be able to read and understamdidmental financial statements.

The Board believes that it has adequate represemiaitthe necessary skills and requirements ndiesdea

Independence
Majority of the Company’s Board of Directors are ipdadent. An independent director is one who:

- does not hold an executive position;

- is not a substantial shareholder of the Companynoofficer of, or otherwise associated directly with
substantial shareholder of the Company;

- has not within the last three years been emplogeshi executive capacity by the Company or othermrou
member, or been a director after ceasing to hojdsanh employment;

- is not a principal of a significant professionaliaér or a significant consultant of the Compangther group
member, or an employee materially associated \wittservice provided;

- is not a significant supplier or customer of the @any or other group member, or an officer of, treotvise
associated directly or indirectly with a signifitaupplier or customer;

- has no significant contractual relationship with tBompany or other group member other than as &tDire
of the Company;

- is free from any interest and any business or atationship which could, or could reasonably becpived
to, materially interfere with the Director’s abylito act in the best interests of the Company; and

- has not been a director of the entity for suchreogehat his or her independence may have beepreonised.

Materiality thresholds in determining the indepemzkof non-executive directors are:
- A relationship that accounts for more than 10%hefdirector’s gross income (other than directoglssfpaid
by the company).
- Where the relationship is with a firm, company otitg, in respect of which the director (or any@sate) has
more than 20% shareholding if a private compargerif a listed company.
Mr Frank Leong has no relationships or interesas would affect his role as an independent director
Mr Y P Lim has no relationships or interests thatild affect his role as an independent director.

Mr lan R Millard has no relationships or interestattwould affect his role as an independent directo

Mr S P Sze has no relationships or interests toatdvaffect his role as an independent director.
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Mr K H Sim is an Executive Director and therefaseonsidered by the Board to be not independent.
Mr K'Y Sim is an Executive Director and therefoseconsidered by the Board to be not independent.

Mr G L Sim was appointed the Group Managing Direofczicom Group Limited commencing 1 July 2006¢ &hairman
of Zicom Group Limited with effect from 23 Novemk2006. He is a major shareholder in Zicom Groupitaththrough
his interest in his family company, SNS Holdings Btd. Previously Mr Sim had been the major shddsrothrough
SNS Holdings Pte Ltd) of Zicom Holdings Private lified (“ZHPL"). Mr Sim has been the Managing Dimacof ZHPL

since founding the company and was appointed th@@aa of ZHPL on 17 August 2007, in line with higgition as the
Group Chairman. The Board has determined that MrSinkis, and was not independent.

As such, the Chairperson and Managing Director jpositare held by the same non-independent directtve Board
recognises the importance of having an indeperaeit, however, other selection criterion, in garar business acumen
and industry experience, are also fundamentallyitamt. The Board has chosen a director who lgafisiant diversified
and broad-based experience in the business whéeatlithe Company in the best interests of the bbiters.

Length of Service
The term in office held by each Director in offiaethe date of this report is as follows:

Executive Independent

Mr G L Sim 23 years Mr lan R Millard 12 years

Mr K H Sim 11 years MrY P Lim 12 years

Mr K'Y Sim 4 years Mr Frank Leong 12 years
Mr S P Sze 8 years

The Company’s Constitution specifies that at eacluahgeneral meeting, one-third of the Directorstifer time being but
not exceeding one-third (with the exception of Menaging Director) must retire from office by rotat.

Independent Professional Advice
Directors and Board Committees have the right, imeetion with their duties and responsibilities aseftors, to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’'sresea Prior written approval of the Chairman is negly and this
will not be unreasonably withheld.

Induction and Professional Development

The Company does not consider it necessary to heeensl program for inducting new directors and fpssional
development for directors. However, whenever appate, the Company provides opportunities to dgvelod maintain
their skills and knowledge to perform their rolesCdrectors effectively.

Principle 3: Act Ethically and Responsibly

Code of Conduct

The Board expects all Directors, officers, employa®s consultants to the Company to observe highiatds of honesty,
integrity, fairness and business ethics. The Compaeg not contract with or otherwise engage anggueor party where
it considers integrity may be compromised.

Directors are required to disclose to the Boardaabn potential conflicts of interest that may oight reasonably be
thought to exist between the interests of the Diarear the interests of any other party in so faitaffects the activities of
the Company and to act in accordance with Gloeporations Act 2001f a conflict cannot be removed or it persists.
Directors would be restricted from taking parthie tdecision making process or discussions whetetimdlict does arise.

Share Trading Policy
Directors are required to make disclosure of aryestirading. The key principles of the Share TrgdPolicy are that
Directors and officers are prohibited to trade wiliil possession of unpublished price sensitivainéion and during the
following closed periods:

«  The period between 1 January and the release @dhgany’s Half Year results to the Stock Exchange

*  The period between 1 July and the release of thep@owis Full Year results to the Stock Exchange

¢ The twenty-four hours following an announcemenpriée sensitive information on the Stock Exchange

e Other periods as may be imposed by the Company \hiea sensitive, non-public information may ejist

relation to a matter

Price sensitive information is information thatemsonable person would expect to have a matefatefn the price or

value of the Company’s shares. The undertaking pti@ding in shares must be notified to the Compaegretary who
makes disclosure to the ASX.
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Principal 4: Safeguard Integrity in Corporate Reporting

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises only independent masib
¢« Mrlan R Millard (Chairman)
¢ Mr Frank Leong
e MrYPLim

The Audit Committee operates in accordance withater. The main responsibilities of the Audit Coittee are to:

« Review, assess and approve the annual report, thgelaa financial report and all other financiafarmation
published by the Company or released to the market.

* Review the effectiveness of the Group’s internaltcdrenvironment, including effectiveness and ééficy of
operations, reliability of financial reporting andmpliance with applicable laws and regulations.

*« Recommend the appointment or removal of the exteunditor and the rotation of the audit engagemartnpr.

* Recommend the remuneration of the external auditut,review the terms of their engagement, the saoge
quality of their audit and assess their performance

*  Consider the independence and competence of theaksiditor on an ongoing basis.

¢ Report on matters relevant to the committee’s roter@sponsibilities.

Non-committee members, including members of theagament team and the external auditor, may atteretings of
the Committee by invitation of the Committee Chair.

The Committee has rights of access to managemengxdachal auditor without management present agiitgito seek
explanations and additional information from botArragement and auditor.

For details on the number of meetings of the A@immittee held during the year and the attended®ae meetings,
please refer to page 10 of the Directors’ Report.

To ensure the integrity of the Company’s finanaglarts, the Group Managing Director and the Graopri€ial Controller
are required to provide written assurance to thar@adhat, in their opinion, the financial recordglee Company for the
relevant financial year have been properly maimaim accordance with th€orporations Act 2001the financial
statements and the notes for the financial yeampbpmith accounting standards and present a trakfain view of the
financial position and performance of the entity.

The Company’s external auditor is requested to dtthea Company’s Annual General Meeting to answerqrestions
from shareholders.

Principal 5: Make Timely and Balanced Disclosure

The Board recognises that the Company as a pubistbdl entity has an obligation to make timely aathbced disclosure
in accordance with the requirements of festralian Securities Exchange Listing Ruéesl theCorporations Act 2001
The Board is committed to keep the market reasonafdymed of information which may have a mategéect on the
price or value of the Company’s securities in @beéd and understandable way.

The Executive Chairman is responsible for monitorinfprmation which could be price sensitive, liagiwith the
Company Secretaries to make an initial assessmentoawarding to the Board for confirmation of disslwe of such
information. If not all Directors are immediatelyailable, the Company Secretary is authoriseddgdsuch information
upon receiving the majority of Directors’ approvralbrder not to delay in giving this information A& X.

Principal 6: Respect the Rights of Shareholders

The Company aims to communicate all important infian relating to the Company to its shareholdeékdditionally,
the Company recognises potential investors and atiberested stakeholders may wish to obtain inféionaabout the
Company from time to time.

To achieve this, the Company communicates informateagularly to shareholders and other stakeholttemigh the
following:

¢ Annual General Meeting (“AGM”): the Company encowesdull participation of shareholders at the AGMIan
for those shareholders who are unable to attempeiison, they are able to lodge proxies. The eatemditor
will attend the AGM and is available to answer guestions from shareholders about the conducteotiit
and the preparation and content of the auditopsnte
« Annual Report: the Company Annual Report will be Eldée on its website and contains important infdiama
about the Company’s activities and results forgrevious financial year.
* ASX Announcements: all ASX announcements, includingual and half year financial reports are posted
the Company’s website as soon as these have beased|lby ASX.
« Investor relations: the Company provides an orgimail inquiry service to assist shareholders with gueries.
All shareholders are given the options to receimmmunications from, and send communications to strae registry
electronically.
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Principle 7: Recognise and Manage Risk

Given the size of the Company, the Board has nobksitad a risk committee nor does it have an irieandit function.
Rather the Board is responsible for the Companyismianagement. The responsibility and control g rhanagement
rests with the senior management of the respestilsidiaries chaired by the Executive Chairman.

The Board is conscious of the need to continuallintaa systems of risk management and controlsanesponsible for
overseeing and approving risk management stratedyalicies and internal controls. The Company hgdace policies
and procedures for risk management which coversareduding workplace health and safety, controkey resources,
investment, manufacturing, financial and otheri@ltbusiness processes. The operational risksnareaged by senior
management level and escalated to the Board fectiin where the issue is exceptional, non-recgranmay have a
material financial or operational impact on the Camp

The Company does not consider that it has any rah&xposure to economic, environmental and socisdagability
risks.

In accordance with Section 295A of tBerporations Act 2001the Group Managing Director (Chief Executive QOffic
equivalent) and the Group Financial Controller (Cligfancial Officer equivalent) have provided a terit statement to
the Board that:

- The view provided on the Company’s financial redortthe financial year just ended is founded oroans
system of risk management and internal control lvivigplements the policies adopted by the Board; and

- The Company's risk management and internal congslem is operating efficiently and effectively ifi a
material respects to manage the Company’s key kassiisks.

The Board acknowledges that such internal contsurasice is not absolute and can only be providedreasonable basis
after having made due enquiries. This is duedtnfa such as the need for judgement, the usetifigeon a sample basis,
the inherent limitations in internal controls arethuse much of the evidence available is persueaiver than conclusive
and therefore is not, and cannot be, designedtezdall weaknesses in control procedures.

Principle 8: Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly

As stated above, a combined Nomination and Remuoer@bmmittee has been established by the Board isimp the
Executive Chairman and two independent directors.

For details on the number of meetings of the Notionaand Remuneration Committee held during the yerl the
attendees at those meetings, please refer to Bagetiie Directors’ Report.

Details of the remuneration for Directors and Kegridgement Personnel can be found in the Diredgapbrt within the
Annual Report.

The Managing Director and Executive Directors reegierformance based remuneration. The Managingciir has
renewed his service agreement with the Group ferra of another 5 years from 1 July 2016. The Nardgtive Directors
do not receive any performance based remuneratidni@ not have contracts with the Company that tieen any form
of specific tenure. One-third of tii&irectors except the Managing Director retire ariyuend are free to seek re-election
by shareholders.

Each member of the Board has committed to spendiffigient time to enable them to carry out theitids as a Director
of the Company.

A maximum amount of remuneration for Non-Executieectors is fixed by shareholders in general nmggéind can be
varied in the same manner. In determining the atlon, the Board must take into account of the tilamands on the
Directors together with the responsibilities undken by them.

The Directors with the exception of Mr G L Sim wepanted options. The first grant of options wapraped by the
shareholders in an Extraordinary General Meeting2®nAugust 2008. The Board considers that there Idhoel an

appropriate mix of remuneration comprising cash saxlrities for all Directors to link the remunératof the Directors
to the financial performance of the Company. The&iors consider this remuneration policy sensibtetzalanced which
aligns the interests of shareholders and all Dirsct Transactions which limit the economic rislpafticipating in unvested
elements under equity-based remuneration schermesaallowed.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income fdhe year ended 30 June 2018

(In Singapore dollars)

Revenue

Other operating income

Cost of materials

Employee, contract labour and related costs
Depreciation and amortisation

Property related expenses

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Loss before taxation
Tax benefit

Loss after taxation

Other comprehensive income:

- Items that may be subsequently reclassified to

profit and loss

Share of other comprehensive income of assaciate

net of tax
Foreign currency translation on consolidation

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the yearphet

tax

Total comprehensive loss

Loss attributable to :
Equity holders of the Parent
Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive loss

Earnings per share (cents)

Basic loss per share
Diluted loss per share
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Note 2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
5 78,994 92,628
5 2,512 1,892
81,506 94,520
(40,156) (45,571)
2,7 (28,601)
(5,208) (5,356)
(2,599) (2,484)
5 (10,523) (17,119)
(424) (421)
12 (1,273) (724)
(11,419) (5,756)
6 277 1,003
(11,142) (4,753)
2 (19)
208) 915
(206) 896
(11,348) (3,857)
(10,873) (4,620)
(269) (133)
(11,142) (4,753)
(11,079) (3,724)
(269) (133)
(11,348) (3,857)
7 (5.01) (2.13)
7 (5.01) (2.13)




Zicom Group Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2018

(In Singapore dollars)

Note 2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 21,301 22,969
Intangible assets 10 14,602 14,724
Deferred tax assets 6 3,054 2,767
Convertible loans to an associate 12 1,131 602
Investments in associates 12 8,798 9,448
48,886 50,511
Current assets
Cash and bank balances 20 9,789 18,6591
Inventories 13 28,007 23,145
Trade and other receivables 14 21,8p2 19,195
Gross amount due from customers for contract work 5 1 4,227 3,305
Prepayments 398 409
Tax recoverable - 32
64,173 64,677
TOTAL ASSETS 113,059 115,188
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 19,1p2 19,p91
Gross amount due to customers for contract work 16 1,844 19
Interest-bearing liabilities 17 18,407 9,985
Provisions 18 1,882 2,281
Provision for taxation 192 219
41,447 32,445
NET CURRENT ASSETS 22,726 32,232
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities 17 664 652
Deferred tax liabilities 6 983 1,224
Provisions 18 414 398
2,061 2,274
TOTAL LIABILITIES 43,508 34,719
NET ASSETS 69,551 80,469
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Share capital 19 38,314 38,314
Reserves (1,562) (1,501)
Retained earnings 32,581 43,444
69,333 80,257
Non-controlling interests 218 212
TOTAL EQUITY 69,551 80,469
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 113,059 115,188
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for théinancial year ended 30 June 2018

(In Singapore dollars)

Share
capital — Foreign Share-
exercise of  currency based Non-
Share share translation payments Retained controlling
Note capital options reserve reserve earnings Total interests Total equity
() (b) (c)
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Balance at 1.7.2016 37,842 472 (2,597) 160 49,146 85,023 69 85,092
Loss for the year - - - - (4,620) (4,620) (133) (4,753)
Other comprehensive gain - 896 - - 896 - 896
Total comprehensive loss for the year - 896 - ,62@) (3,724) (133) (3,857)
Share-based payments 24(a) - - 43 - 43 - 43
Forfeiture of employee share options - - 3) 3 - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling interest - - - ® (276) 276 -
Dividends paid on ordinary shares 8 - - - (809) 809) - (809)
Balance at 30.6.2017 37,842 472 (1,701) 200 43,444 80,257 212 80,469
Loss for the year - - - - (10,873) (10,873) (269) (11,142
Other comprehensive loss - (206) - - (206) - 206)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (206) - (10,873) (11,079) (269) (11,348)
Share-based payments 24(a) - - 155 - 155 - 155
Forfeiture of employee share options - - (10) 10 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiary companies 11(b) - - - - - 275 275
Balance at 30.6.2018 37,842 472 (1,907) 345 32,581 69,333 218 69,551

Attributable to equity holders of the Parent

(&) Share capital — exercise of share options is useecbrd the transfer from share-based paymengsveesipon the exercise of the share options.

(b) Foreign currency translation reserve is used tortkexchange differences arising from the trarmtatif the financial statements of foreign operatiamose functional currencies are
different from that of the Group's presentatiorrency.

(c) The share-based payments reserve is made up cfithdative value of services received from emplsyeeorded over the vesting period commencing flfwrgrant date of equity-
settled share options and is reduced by the expiexercise of the share options.
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Zicom Group Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the yeanded 30 June 2018

(In Singapore dollars)

Note 2018 2017
S$'000 S$°000
Cash flows from operating activities :
Operating loss before taxation (11,419) (5,756)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9 ,9838 4,300
Amortisation of intangible assets 10 1,224 1,056
Bad debts written off 5 - 5
Allowance for doubtful debts, net 5 403 412
Allowance for inventory obsolescence, net 5 322 073
Inventories written off 5 186 62
Finance costs 424 421
Interest income 5 (94) (62)
Property, plant and equipment written off 5 47 7
Intangible assets written off 5 72 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmeet 5 (57) (72)
Forfeiture of customer deposit 5 - (95)
Trade and other payables written back 5 (72) (37)
Provisions made, net 18 167 1,423
Share-based payments 155 43
Share of results of associates 1,273 724
Unrealised exchange differences a77) 573
Operating (loss)/profit before reinvestment in woking capital (3,562) 3,312
Increase in stocks and work-in-progress (3,837) (835)
Decrease in projects-in-progress 903 5,869
Increase in debtors (2,859) (3,712)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (1,140) 3,969
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (10,495) 8,603
Interest received 62 45
Interest paid (428) (402)
Income taxes paid (278) (407)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activis (11,139) 7,839
Cash flows from investing activities :
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9(b) (3,278) a,777)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant andpegent 9(c) 61 94
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-saletasse - 1
Purchase of computer software 10 a7 (68)
Increase in development expenditure (854) (974)
Increase in patented technology 10 (53) (56)
Investments in associates 12(b) (676) (3,339)
Subscription of convertible loan in an associate (497) (600)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 11(b) (145) -
Net cash used in investing activities (5,459) (6,719)
Cash flows from financing activities :
Proceeds from bank borrowings 11,495 2,800
Repayments of bank borrowings (5,063) (4,033)
Loans from a related party 17(e) 1,352 -
Dividends paid on ordinary shares 8 - (809)
Repayment of hire purchase creditors (430) (819)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activiis 7,354 (2,861)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (9,244) (1,741)
Net foreign exchange differences (39) Q)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 20 18,239 19,981
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 20 8,956 18,239
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In Singapore dollars)

1.

Corporate information

This financial report of Zicom Group Limited (th€6mpany” or “Parent Entity”) and its subsidiarieslgctively,
the “Group” or “consolidated entity”) for the yeanded 30 June 2018 was authorised for issue irrdaoce with a
resolution of the Directors on 28 September 2018.

Zicom Group Limited is a for profit company limitdry shares incorporated in Australia whose shamepuablicly
traded on the Australian Securities Exchange. Thapgamy is also the ultimate parent.

The nature of the operations and principal acésitf the Group are described in the Directorsdrep

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.2

The financial report is a general-purpose finanoéglort, which has been prepared in accordance tvith
requirements of theCorporations Act 2001 Australian Accounting Standards and other authtive
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Stadsl&oard (“AASB”). The financial statements haverbee
prepared on a going concern basis and items arsumeghon a historical cost basis except for devigat
financial instruments which have been measureledt fair values.

The financial report is presented in Singaporeagsland all values are rounded to the nearestahdudollars
(S$'000) unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance

The financial report also complies with Internaibfinancial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issuethby
International Accounting Standards Board.

@

(ii)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group applied for the first time certain standdaand amendments, which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2017. The @rdws not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issueid bot yet effective.

The adoption of these standards and interpretatimheot have any effect on the financial perforo®n
or position of the Group.

Accounting Standards and Interpretations issuedniotieffective

Certain Australian Accounting Standards and Integpiens have been recently issued or amended but
are not yet effective. The directors expect theptidn of these new and amended standards and
interpretations will have no material impact on financial statements in the period of initial épgtion
except for the standards disclosed below for witehdirectors have yet to finalise their assessroént
the impact. In respect of AASB 15 in particular, teeiew of revenue contracts to date have not ifiedt

any material adjustments in respect of materiaémere generating business segments. For AASB 9, all
indications are that on a consolidated basis thaahwill be immaterial. AASB 16 is likely to resurtt

the recognition of right of use assets, however®essment is ongoing

e AASB 9Financial Instruments (Effective for annual periaasor after 1 July 2018)

e« AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Effectivarioual periods on or after 1 July
2018)

« AASB l6Leases (Effective for annual periods on or aftdully 2019)

« Interpretation 2ZForeign Currency Transactions and Advance Considlanat

* Interpretation 23Jncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In Singapore dollars)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cord)

2.3

2.4

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprisditiamcial statements of the Company and its suases as

at 30 June 2018. The financial statements of thsidiaries used in the preparation of the consteiiinancial
statements are prepared for the same reportingaatee Parent. Control is achieved when the Greup i
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns framnvolvement with the investee and has the akititpffect
those returns through its power over the inveseecifically, the Group controls an investee if andl if the
Group has:

*  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights tiie¢ it the current ability to direct the relevattivities
of the investee);

«  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns fromitgalvement with the investee; and

« The ability to use its power over the investeeffecaits returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majoffityoding rights results in control. To support thigsumption
and when the Group has less than a majority oféieg or similar rights of an investee, the Gragmsiders
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessirggher it has power over an investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement(s) with the other tiotders of the investee;
* Rights arising from other contractual arrangemeants);
«  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting tigh

The Group reassesses whether or not it controievastee if facts and circumstances indicate thertet are
changes to one or more of the three elements d@falo@onsolidation of a subsidiary begins when@&reup
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases wieeGroup loses control of the subsidiary. Asdetiilities,

income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired posisl of during the year are included in the codated
financial statements from the date the Group gamgrol until the date the Group ceases to coritrel
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprgiie income are attributed to the equity holddrthe
Parent of the Group and to the non-controllingrigdes, even if this results in the non-controllinterests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjussrae made to the financial statements of subgdizo
bring their accounting policies in line with thedBp’s accounting policies. All intra-group assetd habilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relatingatsactions between members of the Group arénglfed
in full on consolidation.

In the Parent Entity’s separate financial statesya@nvestments in subsidiaries are accounted foostt less
impairment losses.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiaijhout a loss of control, is accounted for aseauity

transaction. If the Group loses control over a Bli&gy, it derecognises the related assets (inolydoodwill),

liabilities, non-controlling interest and other gooments of equity while any resultant gain or issgcognised
in profit or loss. Any investment retained is ressgd at fair value.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using tlgeisiton method. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in a business combination azasured initially at fair values at the date ofiasitjon. For
each business combination, the Group elects whathraeasure the non-controlling interests in ttguaee at
fair value or at the proportionate share of theuaeg’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-retht®sts are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assessdmdneial assets and liabilities assumed for appate
classification and designation in accordance withdontractual terms, economic circumstances artohget
conditions as at the acquisition date. This inefuthe separation of embedded derivatives in lurgtacts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stagfes, previously held equity interest in the acquiige
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition dateaany resulting gain or loss is recognised in pifiloss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In Singapore dollars)
2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cord)
2.4 Business combinations and goodwill (cont'd)

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the aberaition transferred in the business combinatioemamount
of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if yNgnd the fair value of the Group’s previouslychehuity
interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net failue of the acquiree’s identifiable assets aakiilities is
recorded as goodwill. In instances where the latteount exceeds the former, the Group reassessthawtit
has correctly identified all of the assets acquaed all of the liabilities assumed and reviewsghecedures
used to measure the amounts to be recognisedatdhésition date. If the reassessment still resalan excess
of the fair value of the net assets acquired oler @aggregate consideration transferred, then the iga
recognised in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measuredaist less any accumulated impairment losses. legodhpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a biesia combination is, from the acquisition date,called to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units thakjeeted to benefit from the combination, irrespecinf
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquaneeassigned to those units.

The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has balotated is tested for impairment annually anérnéver
there is an indication that the cash-generatingrmaay be impaired, by comparing the carrying amairhe
cash-generating unit, including the allocated gdbdwith the recoverable amount of the cash-getiegaunit.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generatiiigs less than the carrying amount, an impaiinhess
is recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losszognised for goodwill are not reversed in subsatperiods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-gangranit and part of the operation within that usidisposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed ofienas included in the carrying amount of the @tiem when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodavgposed of in this circumstance is measured basetie
relative fair values of the disposed operation taedportion of the cash-generating unit retained.

2.5 Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of an entiy éimgages in business activities from which it reasn
revenues and incur expenses (including revenuesxmehses relating to transactions with other corapts
of the same entity), whose operating results agelagly reviewed by the entity’s chief operatingcidéon
makers to make decisions about resources to beatdid to the segment and assess its performancimand
which discrete financial information is available.

Operating segments have been identified based eimformation provided to the chief operating diecis
makers — being the executive management team.

The Group aggregates two or more operating segmérgs they have similar economic characteristias an
the segments are similar in each of the followiegpects:

* Nature of the products and services

e Type or class of customer for the products andicesv

* Methods used to distribute the products or protigeservices, and
«  Nature of the regulatory environment

Operating segments that meet the quantitativerierites prescribed by AASB 8 are reported separately.
However, an operating segment that does not meetjdantitative criteria is still reported sepanatighere
information about the segment would be useful rausf the financial statements.

Segment results include items directly attributaiolea segment as well as those that can be altbcatea
reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly commisporate assets, head office expenses, and éntaom
assets and liabilities. Capital expenditure caasifadditions of property, plant and equipmert emiangible
assets.
2.6 Foreign currency
(@) Functional and presentation currency
The presentation currency of Zicom Group Limite&isgapore dollars (S$). Each subsidiary in theu@ro

determines its own functional currency and itentduided in the financial statements of each subsidia
company are measured using that functional currency
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(In Singapore dollars)

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cord)
2.6 Foreign currency (cont'd)

(b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initiallicamled by the Group’s entities at their respective

functional currency spot rates ruling at the tratisa dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denated

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the oftexchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-maryet
items that are measured in terms of historical toatforeign currency are translated using thdharge

rates at the dates of the initial transactions.-Nmmetary items measured at fair value in a foreigmency

are translated using the exchange rates at theuti@e the fair value is determined.

Differences arising on the settlement or transtatibmonetary items are recognised in profit oslos
(c) Consolidated financial statements

On consolidation, the results and balance shefetreign operations are translated into Singapotkudo
using the following procedures:

« Assets and liabilities are translated at theiolpsate prevailing at the reporting date; and

* Income and expenses are translated at averagpareye rate for the year, which approximates the

exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

The exchange differences arising on the translaienrecognised in other comprehensive income. On

disposal of a foreign operation, the componenttbéocomprehensive income relating to that paicul
foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment areiéiy recorded at cost. The cost of an item of jgrby plant
and equipment is recognised as an asset if, aydifpitlis probable that future economic beneéissociated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cogttbe item can be measured reliably. Such costides the
cost of replacing part of the property, plant agdipment and borrowing costs for long-term congiounc
projects if the recognition criteria are met. Wisgmificant parts of property, plant and equiprmemetrequired
to be replaced at intervals, the Group deprecthers separately based on their specific usefuslilikewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its costedsgnised in the carrying amount of the plantesgipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria atisfad. All other repair and maintenance costsraoegnised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant andmgant are measured at cost less accumulated detpwaci
and accumulated impairment losses.

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life andhésefore not depreciated. Depreciation of an dsegns when
it is available for use and is computed on thegttaine basis over the estimated useful liveshef assets as

follows:

Leasehold buildings over remaining period of tresée

expiring years 2036 to 2042

Buildings 20 years

Machinery 10 years

Office furniture and equipment 3 -5years

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Computers 1 year

Machinery under installation or construction ar¢ aepreciated as these assets are not yet avditahise.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipnaeea reviewed for impairment when events or charige
circumstances indicate that the carrying value n@ybe recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciatiorihrod are reviewed at each financial year-end afjusteti
prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is dereised upon disposal or when no future economic fitene

are expected from its use. Any gain or loss onatgyeition of the asset is included in profit ordas the year
the asset is derecognised.
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2.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measutiedly at cost. The cost of an intangible asseguired in a
business combination is its fair value as at thie dbacquisition. Following initial recognitiomtangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amodisatnd any accumulated impairment losses. Intgrnall
generated intangible assets with the exceptioreeéldpment expenditure and computer software @wstaot
capitalised and the related expenditure is recegnis profit or loss in the period in which suclperditure is
incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assdssed either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortisedratheir useful economic lives and assessed fpairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangémdset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
amortisation method are reviewed at least at aaandial year-end. Changes in the expected uséfubtithe
expected pattern of consumption of future econob@nefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by
changing the amortisation period or method, as@pjate, and are treated as changes in accourdiimages

and adjusted on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at yet available for use are not amortised, butteseed for
impairment annually or more frequently if the exeamd circumstances indicate that the carryingevalay be
impaired either individually or at the cash-genagtunit level. The assessment of indefinite uséfalis

reviewed annually to determine whether it continteebe supportable. If not, the change in uséfelfiom

indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis

Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basisr the estimated useful lives of intangible tsas follows:

Computer software 5 years
Customer list 8 years
Developed technology 7 years
Development expenditure 3 —-10years
Patented technology 10 — 20 years
Unpatented technology 12 — 16 years

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Developrenditure on an individual project is recogdises
an intangible asset only when the Group can dematrshe technical feasibility of completing théaimgible
asset so that it will be available for use or sideintention to complete and its ability to ugesell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic besdfie availability of resources to complete aredahility to
measure reliably the expenditure during developm@mtortisation begins when the development is detep
and the asset is available for use or sale. Apgediture so capitalised is amortised over theoplesf expected
benefit from the related project. During the periddievelopment, the asset is tested for impairraantially.

Club membership
Club membership was acquired separately and ismottsed as it has an indefinite life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of an intangilsteet are measured as the difference betweentttesposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assetraneognised in profit or loss.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whhtreris an indication that an asset may be impalifeay
indication exists, or when annual impairment tesfior an asset is required, the Group estimatesishet’s
recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher ofssetés or cash-generating unit’s fair value lesssto sell
and its value in use and is determined for an iddial asset, unless the asset does not generditéndlasvs
that are largely independent of those from otheetasor groups of assets. In assessing value inthese
estimated future cash flows are discounted to firesent value using a pre-tax discount rate #flgtats current
market assessments of the time value of moneyhandsks specific to the asset. In determiningvalue less
cost to sell, recent market transactions are tak&naccount, if available. If no such transactican be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is us@tese calculations are corroborated by valuatiatiiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companiestioer available fair value indicators. Where thagerying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable ambendsset is considered impaired and is writtenndimaits
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recedmmsprofit or loss.
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2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets (cont'd)

The Group bases its impairment calculation on teetdiudgets which are prepared separately for ehtie

Group’s cash-generating units to which the indieidassets are allocated. These budgets generalér eo
period of five years. For longer periods, a longrtgrowth rate is calculated and applied to projetire cash
flows after the period covered by the budgets.

An assessment is made at each reporting datevetsetther there is any indication that previouslyomgused
impairment losses for an asset other than goodwdly no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is eggthaA previously recognised impairment loss iereed only

if there has been a change in the assumptionstas#etermine the asset’s recoverable amount sireéast
impairment loss was recognised. If that is theecdlse carrying amount of the asset is increaseitsto
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannmeexthe carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairnhesg been recognised for the asset in prior y&agersal

of an impairment loss is recognised in profit @do

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Groupdigsificant influence through its power to partaig in the
financial and operating policy decisions of thedstee but does not have control or joint contr@rdhose
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are accodotacing the equity method from the date it beesran
associate.

On acquisition of the investment, any excess ofcth& of investment over the Group’s share of thefair
value of the investee’s identifiable assets artallifees is accounted as goodwill and is includedhe carrying
amount of the investment. Such goodwill is neitherortised nor tested for impairment. Any excdsthe
Group’s share of the net fair value of the investatentifiable assets and liabilities over thetaafdnvestment
is included as income in the determination of thieup’s share of results of associate in the peirioghich
the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, investment in associataiged in the balance sheet at cost plus postisitign
changes in the Group’s share of net assets ofdbecamte. The profit or loss reflects the Groighiare of
results of operations of the associate. Wherethas been a change recognised in other compregbémsbme
by the associate, the Group recognises its shasaabf changes in other comprehensive income. liseda
gains and losses resulting from transactions betieeGroup and the associate are eliminated texteat of
its interest in the associate.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associat@®qr exceeds its interest in the associateGtbap does
not recognise further losses, unless it has induwldigations or made payments on behalf of thecaste.

After application of the equity method, the Growgietmines whether it is necessary to recogniselditi@nal
impairment loss on its investment in associatee Enoup determines at each reporting date whetieee is
any objective evidence that the investment in thspeiate is impaired. If this is such evidence, @meup
calculates the amount of impairment as the diffeedmetween the recoverable amount of the assauiatés
carrying value and recognises the amount in poofibss included in the Group’s share of resultassociates.

The financial statements of the associates areapedpfor the same reporting period as the Grougherg/
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the ategyuolicies in line with those of the Group.

Upon loss of significant influence over the ass@githe Group measures the retained interest ravddie.

Any difference between the aggregate of fair valfithe retained interest and proceeds from disparsdlthe
carrying amount of the investment at the date thety method was discontinued is recognised inipoofioss.
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2.11 Financial Instrument — Initial recognition and sedpgsent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that givesgto a financial asset of one entity and a fireniability or
equity instrument of another entity.

@)

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial rectignj as financial assets at fair value througHipao loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investmeantailable-for-sale financial assets, or as dériea
designated as hedging instruments in an effecedgé, as appropriate.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fealue plus, in the case of financial assetsraobrded
at fair value through profit or loss, transacti@sts that are attributable to the acquisition effthancial
asset.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that reqelieery of assets within a time frame establishgd
regulation or convention in the market place (ragway trades) are recognised on the trade datéhiee
date that the Group commits to purchase or seksset.

Subsequent measurement
For purpose of subsequent measurement, finandatsaare classified in four categories:

* Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo
¢ Loan and receivables

e Held-to-maturity investments

*  Available-for-sale financial assets

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit osko

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slénclude financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recogniti fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if theyaaquired for the purpose of selling or repuriitas

in the near term. Derivatives, including separaptbedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effetiddying instruments as defined by AASB 139.

The Group has not designated any financial ast& aalue though profit or loss. Financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss are carriedaét value with net changes in fair value presdnte
as finance costs (negative net changes in faieyauinterest income (positive net changes in fair
value) in profit or loss.

(b) Loans and receivables

This category is the most relevant to the GrougarLand receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments thatatequoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such financial assets are subsequegdlsured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment. Gains and logsesecognised in profit or loss when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired,fanddh the amortisation process.

(c) Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or detarable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as held-to-maturity when the Group Hees gositive intention and ability to hold the
investment to maturity. After initial measuremehngld-to-maturity investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest methess, impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the held-to-maturity investmts are derecognised or impaired, and through
the amortisation process. The Group did not hayéhatd-to-maturity investments during the years
ended 30 June 2018 and 2017.
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2.11 Financial Instrument — Initial recognition asubsequent measurement (cont'd)

@

(i)

Financial assets (cont'd)
(d) Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets

AFS financial assets include equity investments @elat securities. Equity investments classified
as AFS are those that are neither classified asfhekrading nor designated at fair value through
profit or loss. Debt securities in this category Hose that are intended to be held for an indefin
period of time and that may be sold in responsededs for liquidity or changes in market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets sm®sequently measured at fair value with
unrealised gains or losses recognised in other mmepsive income and credited to the AFS
reserve until the investment is derecognised, atiwime, the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in other operating income, or when the investmedeitermined to be impaired, the cumulative loss
is reclassified from the AFS reserve to profit @sd. Interest earned while holding AFS financial
assets is reported as interest income using teetefé interest method.

Investments in equity instruments whose fair vataenot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less impairment loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised where the contahcight to receive cash flows from the asset has
expired. On derecognition of a financial assetsrentirety, the difference between the carryingpant
and the sum of the consideration received and atim@ulative gain or loss that had been recognised i
other comprehensive income is recognised in poofibss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whbdreris objective evidence that a financial asset
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairingxists if one or more events that has occurneckesi
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurrlmss event’) has an impact on the estimated futash
flows of the financial asset or the group of finah@ssets that can be reliably estimated. Eviderfice
impairment may include indications that the deldora group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in ietest or principal payments, the probability thnetytwill
enter into bankruptcy or other financial reorgatitsaand observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future @asb, fsuch as changes in arrears or economic consliti
that correlate with defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, Gheup first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are indivally significant, or collectively for financial asts that
are not individually significant. If the Group detgénes that no objective evidence of impairmensesxi
for an individually assessed financial asset, wiresiignificant or not, it includes the asset irraug of
financial assets with similar credit risk charaistits and collectively assesses them for impaitmen
Assets that are individually assessed for impaitraed for which an impairment loss is, or contintees
be, recognised are not included in a collectivess®ment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is sugad as the difference between the asset’s cgrryin
amount and the present value of estimated futusk flaws discounted at the financial asset’s oagin
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced thrdhghuse of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in profit or loss. When the asset besameollectable, the carrying amount of the imghire
financial asset is reduced directly or if the armouas previously charged to the allowance accdhat,
amounts charged to the allowance account are witfeagainst the carrying value of the financisdet.

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estichahpairment loss increases or decreases bechuse o
an event occurring after the impairment was reczaghithe previously recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowancewtcIf a write-off is later recovered, the recovis
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.11 Financial Instrument — Initial recognition asubsequent measurement (cont'd)

2.12

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initialogggnition, as financial liabilities at fair valuerbugh profit
or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or asatires designated as hedging instruments in actafe
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initiallgt fair value and, in the case of loans and bomgaiand
payables, net of directly attributable transactosts.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade aother payables, loans and borrowings includingkban
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities dependstair classification, as described below:
(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profitr loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through proét loss include financial liabilities held for tiad
and financial liabilities designated upon initiatognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held foading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category aistudes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hgdgstruments in hedge relationships as defined
by AASB 139. Separated embedded derivatives arechdssified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading eeognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial reoitgpn at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, anty if the criteria in AASB 139 are satisfied. The
Group has not designated any financial liabilityaét value through profit or loss.

(b) Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the GrouperAhitial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortsstdusing the effective interest method. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss whetlidbilities are derecognised as well as throbgh t
amortisation process.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the gaition under the liability is discharged or careelbr
expires. When an existing financial liability iptaced by another from the same lender on subatiynti
different terms, or the terms of an existing lidbilare substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of thiginal liability and the recognition of a new lidity.

The difference in the respective carrying amousite¢ognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are efffand the net amount is reported in the balaneetsh

there is a currently enforceable legal right tseffthe recognised amounts and there is an intetdio
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets dthelthe liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instrumenthsas foreign currency forward contracts to hetgiereign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruntseare initially recognised at fair value on tlaéedon which
a derivative contract is entered into and are sylEsaly remeasured at fair value. Derivativescaried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive as financial liabilities when the fair value isgative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes invalue of derivatives are taken directly to profiass.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on handndeeposits, and short-term, highly liquid inve=tis

that are readily convertible to known amounts shcand which are subject to an insignificant risklmnges
in value. These also include bank overdrafts wiicms an integral part of the Group’s cash managem
Bank overdrafts are included within interest-beatiabilities under current liabilities in the balansheet.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andesdisable value. Costs incurred in bringing thesntories to
their present location and condition are accoufdeds follows:

« Raw materials and trading stocks: purchase cosssfiost-in, first-out basis; and

¢ Finished goods and work-in-progress: costs of tinmaterials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operasipgoity. These costs are assigned on a firstrst; fi
out basis.

When necessary, allowance is provided for damagiesblete and slow moving items to adjust the cagyi
value of inventories to the lower of cost and metisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling piicéhe ordinary course of business less estimatssts of
completion and the estimated costs necessary te thaksale.

Construction contracts

The Group principally operates fixed price contsacontract revenue and contract costs are recahase
revenue and expenses, respectively, by referenteetstage of completion of the contract activityttee
reporting date, when the outcome of a construa@ntract can be estimated reliably.

The outcome of a construction contract can be estidhreliably when (i) total contract revenue can b
measured reliably; (i) it is probable that the mammic benefits associated with the contract wdlflto the
entity; (i) the costs to complete the contraad éime stage of completion can be measured reliably;(iv) the
contract costs attributable to the contract caoléarly identified and measured reliably so thatdhtual costs
incurred can be compared with prior estimates.

Where the outcome of the construction contract cbe measured reliably (principally during thelyatages
of a contract), both contract revenue and expeasesiot recognised until the outcome can be esinat
reliably.

The stage of completion is measured by the prapottiat contract costs incurred to date bear testienated
total contract costs. Only costs that reflect mew performed are included in the estimated wiats of the
contract.

An expected loss on the construction contractdegeised as an expense immediately when it is jptelibat
total contract costs will exceed total contracierave.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, sucleagatives, at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be receivedelban asset or paid to transfer a liability incaderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement @&t fair value measurement is based on the mson

that the transaction to sell the asset or traribteliability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability
i) In the absence of a principal market, in the mdstaatageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market beisiccessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measuusing the assumptions that the market partitspanould
use when pricing the asset or liability, assumhag the market participants act in their econonaist linterest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asslets into account a market participant’s abilitygémerate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highedtbest use or by selling it to another markgtgjpant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2.16 Fair value measurement (cont'd)

2.17

2.18

2.19

The Group uses valuation techniques that are agptefn the circumstances and for which sufficieata are
available to measure fair value, maximising the efse2levant observable inputs and minimising tke of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair valuerreasured or disclosed in the financial statemestsategorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as folp based on the lowest level input that is sigaift to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices tivaenarkets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowkvel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lotvksel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognisedhénfinancial statements at fair value on a recgrhasis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurreeeke levels in the hierarchy by reassessing cetagion

(based on the lowest level of input that is siguaifit to the fair value measurement as a whold)eaend of
each reporting period.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has amirebligation (legal or constructive) as a resiild past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resourea®odying economic benefits will be required tdlsahe
obligation and the amount of the obligation caresmated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting dateadpgsted to reflect the current best estimate.i$fmo longer
probable that an outflow of economic resources bl required to settle the obligation, the provisie

reversed. If the effect of the time value of moreynaterial, provisions are discounted using aenirpre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the riskgifipeo the liability. When discounting is usetigtincrease in
the provision due to the passage of time is re@eghas a finance cost.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recoghisben the product is sold or service providedtidhi
recognition is based on historical experience. ifilial estimate of warranty-related costs is eswved annually
and revised, if necessary.

Long service leave / retirement benefits

The liabilities for long service leave and retirerhbenefits, applicable to Australian and Thailantsidiaries
respectively, are recognised in the provision foployee benefits and measured at the present wlue
expected future payments to be made in respectroices provided by employees up to the reportiaig.d
Consideration is given to expected future wage ataislevels, experience of employee departureparidds
of service. Expected future payments are discounsaty market yields at the reporting date on govent
or corporate bond rates with terms to maturity emdencies that match, as closely as possiblesgtimated
future cash outflows.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there somahle assurance that the grant will be receineldadl
attaching conditions will be complied with. Whee @jrant relates to an expense item, it is recodriséncome
on a systematic basis over the periods that théaektosts, for which it is intended to compensatexpensed.
Where the grant relates to an asset, it is dedustadiving at the carrying amount of the asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acdigsi, construction or production of an asset thetessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get readyt$dntended use or sale are capitalised as péreaost of the
asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commende=mnwthe activities to prepare the asset for ienided use
or sale are in progress and the expenditure andwimg costs are incurred. Borrowing costs arataliped
until the asset is substantially completed foiritended use or sale. All other borrowing costsexqgensed in
the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs ésinef interest and other costs that an entity iedn
connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.20 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement ispotains a lease is based on the substance afimgament
at the inception of the lease. The arrangemeat iyntains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangatis dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets andrémeg@ment conveys a right to use the asset oisassen if that
asset is or those assets are not explicitly sgekifi the arrangement.

Group as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date asnanfte lease or an operating lease. A lease thaféra
substantially all the risks and rewards incidetdgabwnership to the Group is classified as a fiedease. An
operating lease is a lease other than a finanse.lea

Finance leases are capitalised at the inceptidineoiease at the fair value of the leased assdtlower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Lpaygments are apportioned between the finance charge
reduction of the lease liability so as to achiewemstant rate of interest on the remaining balantee liability.
Finance charges are charged to profit or losshandie cost.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated ovehdhnieisof the estimated useful life of the asset tie lease
term if there is no reasonable certainty that theu@ will obtain ownership by the end of the letesen.

Operating lease payments are recognised as ansxpeprofit or loss on a straight-line basis otver lease
term.

Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group transfers substantiallthallrisks and rewards of ownership of the leasedtds
accounted for in accordance with the Group’s pdiarysale of goods as set out in note 2.22. Costsried in
connection with negotiating and arranging the foelease are recognised as an expense when thg petifit
is recognised.

Leases where the Group retains substantially altitks and rewards of ownership of the assetlassified as
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurreshé@gotiating and arranging an operating lease aledatb the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognigatthe lease term on the same basis as rentahanc The
accounting policy for rental income is set out @en2.22.

2.21 Employee benefits

@)

(b)

Defined contribution plans

The Group makes contributions to national pensaresies as defined by the laws of the countries in
which it has operations.

For its Australian subsidiaries, contributions erade to employee accumulation superannuation funds.
For the Group’s companies in Singapore, contrilmstiare made to the Central Provident Fund scheme, a
defined contribution pension scheme. The subsidiargpany incorporated and operating in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) is required to provide certataff pension benefits to its employees under
existing PRC regulations. Pension contributiongpao®ided at rates stipulated by PRC regulators a@d ar
contributed to a pension fund managed by governagencies, which are responsible for administering
these amounts for the subsidiary’s employees.

Contributions to defined contribution pension scheme recognised as an expense in the year in which
the related service is performed.

Employee share option plan

Employees (including key management personneh@f3roup receive remuneration in the form of share
options as consideration for service rendered. dtwt of these equity-settled share-based payment
transactions with employees is measured by refertmthe fair value of the options at the daterahg
using an appropriate valuation model. This costetognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
increase in the share-based payments reserve tlevgreriod in which service conditions are fulfille
(“vesting period”). The cumulative expense recogdiat each reporting date until the vesting ddteats

the extent to which the vesting period has expamd the Group’s best estimate of the number obopti
that will ultimately vest. The charge or creditgmfit or loss for a period represents the movenient
cumulative expense recognised as at beginningrehdfehat period and is recognised in employe¢scos
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2.21 Employee benefits (cont'd)

2.22

(b) Employee share option plan (cont'd)

No expense is recognised for options that do riirhately vest. The share-based payments reserve is
transferred to retained earnings upon expiry defture of the share options after its vesting détaen

the options are exercised, the share-based paymesgis/e is transferred to share capital as nevesha
are issued.

Where the terms of an equity-settled transactioardwre modified, the minimum expense recognised is
the expense as if the terms had not been modifithee original terms of the award are met. An éiddial
expense is recognised for any modification thatdases the total fair value of the share-based eatym
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the exppé as measured at the date of modification.

Where the employee share option plan is cancetlélfreated as if it vested on the date of cdatieh,
and any expense that otherwise would have beergmeszml for services received over the remaining
vesting period is recognised immediately. Howeifexr,new award is substituted for the cancelledrdya
and designated as a replacement award on thet ehate granted, the cancelled and new awards aietre
as if there was a modification of the original asvaas described in the previous paragraph.

(c) Employee leave entitlement
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recodmrise liability when they are accrued to the eygis.

The undiscounted liability for leave expected toseétled within 12 months from the reporting date
recognised for services rendered by the employpés the end of the reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is frebthat the economic benefits will flow to the Gpoand the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless afi thteepayment is received. Revenue is measuree &tith
value of the consideration received or receivabé,of returns and allowances, trade discountsvahtme
rebates, taking into account contractually defiteeths of payment and excluding taxes or duty. Tteu@ has
concluded that it is acting as a principal in dlite revenue arrangements. The specific recognitidgteria
described below must also be met before reventezdgnised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised wreegigimificant risks and rewards of ownership ofgbeds
have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery®fjiods. Revenue is not recognised to the extenewhere
are significant uncertainties regarding recoverthefconsideration due, associated costs or thelpeseturn
of goods.

Rendering of services
Revenue from services rendered are recognised wéormance of services and the delivery to custemer

Revenue recognised on projects

Revenue on projects are recognised using the pagemf completion method. The stage of completion i
determined by reference to the costs incurred te ds a percentage of total estimated costs fdr pagect.
Losses, if any, are immediately recognised whein thaéstence is foreseen.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effectiverest method.

Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the Group’striglreceive payment is established.

Rental income
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-lineshaver the lease terms. The aggregate costehiives
provided to lessees is recognised as a reducticentdl income over the lease term on a straigletthasis.

Commission income
Commission for services rendered is recognised acerual basis.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (cord)

2.23 Taxation

() Currentincome tax

(b)

Current income tax assets and liabilities for therent and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tamasiuthorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enactedbstasiively enacted at the reporting date, in the
countries where the Group operates and generaisiéancome.

Current income taxes are recognised in profit os lescept to the extent that the tax relates tostem
recognised outside profit or loss, either in ot@nprehensive income or directly in equity. Mamagat
periodically evaluates positions taken in the &bams with respect to situations in which applieabx
regulations are subject to interpretation and déstads provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability methanl temporary differences at the end of the repgrti
period between the tax bases of assets and liabikind their carrying amounts for financial rejpgrt
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for alldble temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from thetialirecognition of goodwill or of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a businesmbination and, at the time of the transactiorecff
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profilass; and

- In respect of taxable temporary differences assettiwith investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, when the goifithe reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the tempodiffierences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all dedad##mporary differences, carry forward of unused t
credits and unused tax losses to the extent tiimpitobable that taxable profit will be availalalgainst
which the deductible temporary differences, andcrey forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the dededemporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transatthat is not a business combination and, afirtie t
of the transaction, affects neither the accouniradit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of deductible temporary differences eiased with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangementsrréelftax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differenaésreverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the tempgrdifferences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is vedeat each reporting date and reduced to the texten
that it is no longer probable that sufficient tabegrofit will be available to allow all or part tife deferred

tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferredatmets are reassessed at each reporting dateeand a
recognised to the extent that it has become pretthabt future taxable profit will allow the defedreax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurdtbabx rates that are expected to apply in the yhen
the asset is realised or the liability is settledsed on tax rates and tax laws that have beermeéenacc
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outsidgitpor loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlationtie underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity and defé tax arising from a business combination is
adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiesadifset, if a legally enforceable right existsset off

current income tax assets against current incomédilities and the deferred taxes relate to shme
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (cord)

2.23 Taxation (cont'd)

©

Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognisedmegaiount of goods and services tax except:
- When the goods and services tax incurred on a paechf assets or services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the goadd services tax is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part ofetkeense item, as applicable; and

- When receivables and payables are stated withntloeiiat of goods and services tax included.

The net amount of goods and services tax recowerabin, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables irbdlance sheet.

2.24 Share capital and share issuance expenses

Ordinary shares are classified as share capidjirity. Incremental costs directly attributablete issuance
of new shares are deducted against share capital.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and ssmptions

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated finahgtatements requires management to make judgenestimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amountsvehues, expenses, assets and liabilities, @actompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptiodseatimates could result in outcomes that requireaterial
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets bilitias affected in future periods.

@)

(b)

Judgements made in applying accounting policies

(i) Determination of control and significantluénce over investees

As at 30 June 2018, the Group holds 72.28% (203.02%) equity interest in Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd
(“Curiox”). Although the Group holds the majority wbting rights in Curiox, it has been assessedttieat
Group does not have the power and practical aliditirect the relevant activities of Curiox unilatiy
but has significant influence over its financiadamperating policy decisions. Hence, the investnien
Curiox is treated as an associate as opposed tg bainbsidiary company.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group holds 10.88% (200.B8%b), 16.66% (2017: 16.66%) and 11.51% (2017:
8.23%) equity interests in Histolndex Pte Ltd, BENKLaser Ltd and Pellucid Networks Pte Ltd
respectively. The Group considers these investeemssociates as the Group has the ability to eseerci

significant influence through both its shareholdirand active participation on the respective Boafds
Directors.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and d#esources of estimation uncertainty at the rapgpdate,

that have a significant risk of causing a mateai@justment to the carrying amounts of assets atmilities
within the next financial year, are described beldWe Group based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statemeete prepared. Existing circumstances and assunptio
about future developments, however, may changetaluearket changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Group. Such changesediected in the assumptions when they occur.

@

Impairment of non-financial assets and investmenéssociates

The Group assesses whether there are any indicaftamspairment for all non-financial assets and
investments in associates at each reporting dafmitment exists when the carrying value of antamse
cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverabtaiat which is the higher of its fair value lesstso
of disposal and its value in use.

Goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite livare tested for impairment annually and at ofhesg

when such indicators exist. Other non-financialetssand investments in associates are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the gagrgmounts may not be recoverable.
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and sismptions (cont'd)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of non-financial assets and investmeméssociates (cont'd)

The fair value less costs of disposal calculatobdsed on available data from binding sales tctioss

conducted at arm’s length for similar assets orenlable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the assets (where applicable). Theeval use calculations are based on a discounsd ca
flow (DCF) model. As these calculations are basedssumptions involving unobservable inputs, they
are categorised within Level 3 of the fair valuerhrchy. The cash flows are derived from budgats fo
the next five years and do not include restructudntivities that the Group is not yet committedto

significant future investments that will enhance prerformance of the assets of the CGU being tested.

When value in use calculations are undertaken terahkéne the recoverable amount, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from tleetasr cash generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the presentevalf those cash flows. The recoverable amounts are
sensitive to the discount rates used in the DCF iméutere cash inflows including the timing of such
cash inflows and the growth rates used for bottirtitial five year cash flow period and long ternogth
rates. For some CGUs, management also considembility to commercialise based on the stage of
development of the CGU’s product and services. Wililsse decisions are based on outcomes from
research and development to date, it also invaveignificant level of judgement. These estimates a
most relevant to goodwill and other intangible sssecognised by the Group. These estimates ave als
relevant where the carrying value of investmentasisociates are considered.

The key assumptions used to determine the recdeeaahounts for the different cash generating units
are disclosed in note 10 to the financial statement

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reportiimgd pghether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired. To determine whetherd is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
considers factors such as the probability of inseby or significant financial difficulties of thesdtor
and default or significant delay in payments. Theup also takes into account if there have been
significant changes in the technological, markegn®mic or legal environment in which the debtor
operates in.

Where there is objective evidence of impairmerg aimount and timing of future cash flows are edtha
based on historical loss experience for assetssiititar credit risk characteristics. The carryamgount

of the Group’s loans and receivables at the repgrtate is disclosed in note 21 to the financial
statements.

Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue by referenttee stage of completion of the contract actigity

the reporting date, when the outcome of a constnu@ontract can be estimated reliably. The stedge o
completion is determined by reference to the dostsrred to date for work performed as a percentdge
total estimated contract costs. Significant assionptare required to estimate the total contrastsco
which will affect the stage of completion. In magithese estimates, management has relied on past
experience and knowledge of the project engindérs.carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiedragis
from construction contracts at the balance sheetate disclosed in note 15 to the financial statem

Development expenditure

The Group capitalises development expendituredénra@ance with its accounting policy as set outdten

2.8. Initial capitalisation of costs is based omagement’s judgement that technological and ecomomi
feasibility is confirmed. In determining the amouatbe capitalised, management makes assumptions
regarding the expected future cash generationegbtbject, discount rates to be applied and theced
period of benefits. As at 30 June 2018, the cagr@mount of capitalised development expenditure was
S$$5,209,000 (2017: S$5,113,000).
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3.

4.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and sismptions (cont'd)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd)

v)

Taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in numguossdictions. Significant judgement is involved in
determining the provision for income taxes. Theuprrecognises liabilities for expected tax issased

on estimates of whether additional taxes will be.dlhe Group recognises deferred tax assets for all
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probtiaietaxable profit will be available against whithe
losses can be utilised. Significant judgement ¢guined to determine the amount of deferred taxtasse
that can be recognised, based on the likely tiraimdj level of future taxable profits. Where the fitze
outcome is different from the amounts that werédhy recognised, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the gkimiowhich such determination is made.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current taxaégs and deferred tax liabilities at 30 June 204&
S$192,000 (2017: S$219,000) and S$983,000 (201¥,224%,000) respectively. The Group also had
deferred tax assets of S$3,054,000 (2017: S$2,06Y 4 at 30 June 2018.

Segment information

Business segments

Identification of reportable segments

The Group has identified its operating segmentedas internal reports that are reviewed and usgethd chief
operating decision maker and the executive manageteam in assessing performance and in determitiag
allocation of resources. The operating segmeetiantified based on products and services sl

Offshore Marine, Oil & Gas Machinery — manufactared supply of deck machinery, gas metering statigas
processing plants and related equipment, partsamnices.

Construction Equipment — manufacture and supply asfcete mixers and foundation equipment, including
equipment rental, parts and related services.

Precision Engineering & Technologies — manufacame supply of precision and automation equipmeit an
products, medtech equipment and products, medtanhlation and engineering services.

Industrial & Mobile Hydraulics — supply of hydracldrive systems, parts and services.

Intersegment sales

Intersegment sales are recognised based on ifjeseakransfer price at arm’s length basis.

Unallocated revenue and expenses

Unallocated revenue comprises mainly non-segmeexahue. Unallocated expenses comprise mainly non-
segmental expenses such as head office expenses.
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4. Segment information (cont'd)

Business segments (cont'd)

The following tables present informatiogaeding operating segments for the years endedr3® 2018 and 2017.

Precision
Offshore marine, engineering Industrial &
oil & gas Construction & mobile
machinery equipment technologies hydraulics Consolidated

S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Year ended 30 June 2018
Revenue
Sales to external customers 6,472 41,349 29,288 1,885 78,994
Other revenue 629 60 1,659 - 2,348
Intersegment sales 108 4 - 301 413
Total segment revenue 7,209 41,413 30,947 2,186 81,755
Intersegment elimination (413)
Unallocated revenue 70
Interest income 94
Total consolidated revenue 81,506
Results
Segment results (5,431) 2,223 (5,789) 516 (8,481)
Unallocated revenue 70
Unallocated expenses (1,405)
Share of results of associates (1,273) (1,273)
Loss before tax and finance costs (11,089)
Finance costs (424)
Interest income 94
Loss before taxation (11,419)
Tax benefit 277
Net loss after taxation (11,142)
Other segment information
Capital expenditure
- property, plant and equipment 12 3,464 366 - 3,842
- intangible assets 341 6 965 — 1,312

5,154

Depreciation and amortisation 394 2993 1.555 11 4.953
Other non-cash expenses 447 574 418 22 1,461
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4.

Segment information (cont'd)

Business segments (cont'd)

Year ended 30 June 2017
Revenue

Sales to external customers
Other revenue
Intersegment sales

Total segment revenue

Intersegment elimination
Unallocated revenue
Interest income

Total consolidated revenue

Results

Segment results

Unallocated revenue
Unallocated expenses

Share of results of associates

Loss before tax and finance costs
Finance costs
Interest income

Loss before taxation
Tax expense

Net loss after taxation

Other segment information

Capital expenditure
- property, plant and equipment

- intangible assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Other non-cash expenses

Precision
Offshore marine, engineering Industrial &
oil & gas Construction & mobile
machinery equipment technologies hydraulics Consolidated
S$°000 S$'000 S$'000 S$°000 S$'000
31,362 30,965 28,717 1,584 92,628
173 82 1,468 - 1,723
- 1 4 436 441
31,535 31,048 30,189 2,020 94,792
(441)
107
62
94,520
492 (1,154) (3,011) 347 (3,326)
107
(1,454)
(724) (724)
(5,397)
(421)
62
(5,756)
1,003
(4,753)
228 2,125 478 - 2,831
- 2 1,108 - 1,110
3,941
422 3,344 1,318 17 5,101
972 458 864 64 2,358
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4.

Segment information (cont'd)

Geographical segments

The Group’s geographical segments for revenue anecorrent assets are determined based on loaaticustomers and assets respectively.

The following table presents revenue and certagrtagnformation regarding geographical segmenmtthfyears ended and as at 30 June 2018 and 2017.

30 June 2018

Australia Malaysia Singapore

S$'000
Revenue
Sales to external customers 23,988
Other revenue from external customers 22

Other segment information

Segment non-current assets 3,091
Investments in associates -
Unallocated assets

Capital expenditure
- property, plant and equipment 855
- intangible assets -

S$'000 S$'000

5,327 23
33 1,
1,373 24
- 7.6
267 1,
- 1,312

China
S$'000

546
2

468

340
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United
States
S$'000

1,758

Bangladest Thailand

S$'000

2,829

615

S$'000

2,446
20

5,725

899

Indonesia Philippines

S$'000

1,852

58

319

S$'000

5,932

210

185

Taiwan
S$'000

5,521

Others
S$'000

5,726
5

Total
S$'000

78,994
2,512

81,506

872
1,196

37,034
8,798
3,054

48,886

3,854
1,312

5,166
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4.

Segment information (cont'd)
Geographical segments (cont'd)

30 June 2017

Revenue
Sales to external customers

Other revenue from external customers

Other segment information
Segment non-current assets
Investments in associates
Unallocated assets

Capital expenditure
- property, plant and equipment
- intangible assets

Australia
S$'000

17,377
16

2,564

336

4,434
17

1,674

246

Malaysia Singapore

S$'000 S$'000

12
1

27
8,C

2,
1,129

China
S$'000

21,226
9

216

136
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United
States
S$'000

2,135

20

Bangladest
S$'000

7,596

Thailand
S$'000

3,322
21

5,230

Indonesia Philippines

S$'000

2,578
3

429

S$'000

1,755
1

36

38

Taiwan
S$'000

14,055

Others Total
S$'000 S$'000
5,764 92,628
- 1,892
94,520
910 38,296
1,374 9,448
2,767
50,511
- 2,990
- 1,131
4,121
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5. Revenue, income and expenses

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue

Sale of goods

Rendering of services

Rental income

Revenue recognised on projects

Other operating income

Interest income

Forfeiture of customer deposit

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Trade and other payables written back

Sale of machinery previously written off

Recovery of liquidated damages paid

Services rendered

Government grants

Other revenue

Other operating expenses
Included in other operating expenses are the fatigw

Allowance for inventory obsolescence, net
Allowance for doubtful debts, net

Bad debts written off

Foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Provision for product warranties made, net
Property, plant and equipment written off
Warranty expense charged directly to profit or loss
Inventories written off

Intangible assets written off

Sales commission

Sea Freight

Travelling expenses

Utility charges
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Consolidated

2018 2017
S$000 S$'000
54,193 53,926
4,849 4,491
3,303 2,794
16,649 31,417
78,994 92,628
94 62
- 95
75 71
72 37
24 -
615 -
857 487
761 1,122
32 18
2,512 1,892
322 307
403 412
- 5
350 (236)
103 3,36
47 7
3 4
186 62
72 -
805 6,501
1,017 879
960 1,177
766 772
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6. Taxation

Consolidated

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Current income tax
- Current income tax charge 329 508
- Loss transferred under Group Relief Scheme - )(396
- Adjustments in respect of previous years (46) ) (14
Deferred income tax
- Relating to the origination and reversal of tengppr
differences (20) (917)
- Adjustments in respect of previous years (550) 84§1
Tax benefit 277) (1,003)

A reconciliation between the tax benefit and thedpict of accounting loss of the Group multipliedtbg applicable
tax rate for the year ended 30 June is as follows:

Consolidated

2018 2017
S$°000 S$'000
Loss before taxation (11,419) (5,756)
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profithencountries
where the Group operates (1,423) (673)
Release of deferred tax liability on intangible ¢sse 47) 47)
Non-deductible expenses 154 174
Non-taxable income (127) (123)
Partial tax exemption (36) 37)
Deferred tax assets not recognised 2,559 751
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 433) (262)
Adjustments in respect of previous years (596) 1198
Enhanced tax credits (331) (588)
Others 3 -
Tax benefit 277) (1,003)

The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregatemarate reconciliations for each national jucisoln.
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6.

Taxation (cont'd)

Deferred taxation as at 30 June relates to thevig:

Deferred tax assets

Differences in depreciation
Intangible assets

Provisions

Unutilised tax losses
Unutilised capital allowances

Deferred tax liabilities

Differences in depreciation
Intangible assets

Unutilised capital allowances
Unutilised tax losses
Unutilised donations

The directors estimate that the potential futuoeine tax benefit at 30
June in respect of revenue tax losses of certdisidiaries not brought to

account is

Consolidated
balance sheet

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

2018 2017 2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
(28) (95) (67) (34)
(1,027) (1,022) 5 34
464 710 246 (370)
3,104 2,662 (467) 40
541 512 (29) (45)
3,054 2,767
(988) (1,138) (157) 4v3
(292) (339) (47) (46)
275 184 (91) 63
5 56 51 4
17 13 () (13)
(983) (1,224) (560) (1,101)

The benefit will only be obtained if —

Consolidated

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
7,991 6,324

(a) these subsidiaries derive future assessable inafraenature and of an amount sufficient to enabée t

benefit to be realised;

(b) these subsidiaries continue to be in the same tmadéhere is no substantial change in their sloddatys;

and

(c) there are no changes in tax legislation that agleedsfect these subsidiaries’ ability to realibe benefit.

Tax Consolidation Legislation

Zicom Group Limited and its wholly-owned Australianbsidiaries have not elected to form a tax cadetad

group.
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7.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividimgGroup's net profit or loss attributable to eghivlders of the
Parent by the weighted average number of ordirfaayes outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by digdime Group’s net profit or loss attributable taiggholders of the
Parent by the adjusted weighted average numbeadofary shares which takes into account the effetced! dilutive
potential ordinary shares comprising share optgrasted to employees.

Consolidated

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
(a) Earnings used in calculating basic and dilutediegeper share
Net loss attributable to equity holders e Barent (20,873) (4,620)

No. of shares (Thousands)

(b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares forckasi
diluted earnings per share 217,141 217,141

Singapore cents
(c) Earnings per share

Basic (5.01) (2.13)
Diluted (5.01) (2.13)

There were 2,610,000 (2017: 2,680,000) share opiowkluded from the calculation of diluted earnipgs share
that could potentially dilute basic earnings pearshin the future because they are antidilutivetiercurrent period
presented.

There have been no transactions involving ordinagotential ordinary shares which occurred betwbeneporting
date and the date of completion of these finarsta&tements.

Dividends
Consolidated
2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Declared and paid during the financial year :
- Final unfranked dividend for 2017: nil - -
- Interim unfranked dividend for 2018: nil - -
- Final unfranked dividend for 2016: 0.20 Australigents per share - 459
- Interim unfranked dividend for 2017: 0.15 Ausiaal cents per share - 350
- 809

Proposed but not recognised as a liability as ahB@:
- Final unfranked dividend for 2018: nil (2017:)nil - -
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9.

Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated

Cost
At 1.7.2016

Currency realignment
Additions

Disposals

Reclassification to inventories
Write off

At 30.6.2017

Currency realignment
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Additions

Disposals

Reclassification to inventories
Reclassification

Write off

At 30.6.2018

Accumulated depreciation

At 1.7.2016

Currency realignment

Charge for 2017

Disposals

Reclassification to inventories
Write off

At 30.6.2017

Currency realignment
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Charge for 2018

Disposals

Reclassification to inventories
Write off

At 30.6.2018

Net carrying value
At 30.6.2018

At 30.6.2017

Machinery
under
Freehold Leasehold installation or Plant and Leasehold Motor
land buildings Buildings construction equipment improvements vehicles Total

S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
1,701 10,431 4,322 - 35,614 3,009 2,043 57,120

93 4 236 - 254 6 29 622

- - - 81 2,526 23 360 2,990

- - - - (275) - (389) (664)

- - - - (1,246) - - (1,246)

- - - - (425) - - (425)
1,794 10,435 4,558 81 36,448 3,038 2,043 58,397

26 2 68 (51) 4) (12) 29

- - - - 7 - - 7

- - - 5 3,509 194 146 3,854

- - - - (137) - (120) (257)

- - - - (4,013) - - (4,013)

- - - (86) 86 - - -

- - - - (134) - - (134)
1,820 10,437 4,626 - 35,715 3,228 2,057 57,883
- 4,183 1,468 - 23,081 2,213 1,447 32,392

- 4 83 - 237 7 22 353

- 267 225 - 3,351 233 224 4,300

- - - - (265) - (376) (641)

- - - - (558) - - (558)

- - - - (418) - - (418)
- 4,454 1,776 - 25,428 2,453 1,317 35,428

- 2 25 - (82) (5) @) (67)

- - - - 4 - - 4

- 266 233 - 3,027 234 224 3,984

- - - - (136) - (117) (253)

- - - - (2,427) - - (2,427)

- - - - (87) - - (87)
- 4,722 2,034 - 25,727 2,682 1,417 36,582
1,820 5,715 2,592 - 9,988 546 640 21,301
1,794 5,981 2,782 81 11,020 585 726 22,969
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9.

Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

The net book value of property, plant and eapaipt held under hire purchase are as follows:

Consolidated

2018 2017

S$'000 S$'000

Motor vehicles 301 408
Plant and equipment 796 1,414
1,097 1,822

Leased assets are pledged as security for theddiaance lease liabilities (note 17).

During the year, the Group acquired propeptgnt and equipment with an aggregate cost of SE080
(2017: S$2,990,000) of which S$40,000 (2017: S$BXEY), were acquired by means of hire purchase fingnc
and S$354,000 (2017: S$43,000) was acquired by snefitoan financing. Cash payments of S$3,278,000
(2017: S$1,777,000) were made to purchase prog@ayt and equipment. Included in additions is moant

of S$182,000 (2017: S$519,000) which was previoirstjuded in stock but was converted and capitdlss
fixed assets during the current financial year.

During the financial year, the Group disposegroperty, plant and equipment with an aggregaténok value
of S$4,000 (2017: S$23,000). Sales proceeds anmuuietiS$61,000 (2017: S$94,000) were receivedsh.ca

During the financial year, the Group wrote pifbperty, plant and equipment with an aggregatéaek value
of approximately S$47,000 (2017: S$7,000).

The net book value of property, plant and eaneipt pledged as security are as follows:

Consolidated

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Leasehold buildings 5,715 2,623
Freehold land and buildings 4,412 4,576
Plant and equipment 354 -
Motor vehicles 93 110
10,574 7,309

Please refer to note 17 for details.
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10.

Intangible assets

Consolidated

Cost

At 1.7.2016

Currency realignment

Additions
Reclassification to inventories

At 30.6.2017

Currency realignment
Acquisition of subsidiary
Additions

Reclassification to inventories
Write off

At 30.6.2018

Accumulated amortisation
At 1.7.2016

Currency realignment
Amortisation
Reclassification to inventories

At 30.6.2017

Currency realignment
Acquisition of subsidiary
Amortisation

Reclassification to inventories

At 30.6.2018
Net carrying value
At 30 June 2018

At 30 June 2017

Customer Developed Development Club Computer Unpatented Patented
list technology Goodwill expenditure  membership software technology technology Total
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$00 S$'000 S$°000
918 1,141 6,919 5,661 9 2,250 3,721 220 20,839
- - 106 - 1 30 - - 371
- - - 1,007 - 68 - 56 1,131
- - - (92) - - - - (92)
918 1,141 7,025 6,576 10 2,348 3,721 276 22,015
- - (97) - - (15) - - (112)
- - - - - 5 - - 5
- - 327 915 - 17 - 53 1,312
- - - (43) - - - - (43)

- - (45) - - - - (27) (72)
918 1,141 7,210 7,448 10 2,355 3,721 302 23,105
918 1,141 - 907 - 1,780 1,455 6 6,207

- - - - - 27 - - 27

- - - 556 - 221 274 5 1,056

918 1,141 - 1,463 - 2,028 1,729 11 7,290
- - - - - (16) - - (16)
- - - - - 5 - - 5

- - - 776 - 168 274 6 1,224
918 1,141 - 2,239 - 2,185 2,003 17 8,503

- - 7,210 5,209 10 170 1,718 285 14,602

- - 7,025 5,113 10 320 1,992 265 14,725
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10.

Intangible assets (cont'd)
Development Unpatented
expenditure  technology

Average remaining amortisation period (years) -8201 4.9 6.4

Average remaining amortisation period (years) —7201 5.2 7.4

Assets by business segment:

Assets and investments in associates by busingsses¢ are summarised as follows:

Offshore Construction Precision Industrial Unallocated Total
marine, oil & equipment engineering & & mobile
gas machinery technologies hydraulics
Property plant and equipment 2,883 15,244 1,187 2 ,9851 21,301
Intangible assets 358 1,987 12,212 10 35 14,602
Investment in associates - - 8,798 — - 8,798
3,241 17,231 22,197 12 2,020 44,701

Offshore Marine, Oil and Gas Machinery

The assets in this segment relate predominan@ydom Private Limited and Zicom Equipment Privaienlted. The

most significant asset in this segment relatesléasehold building amounting to S$2.5m, carriedistorical cost less
accumulated depreciation, which has been suppbytetarket valuation that confirmed no indicatoimpairment. The
oil and gas segment continues to generate posisisk flows with a pipeline of contracts and maminproduct sales
and projects further supporting no impairment teigg

Construction Equipment

The assets in this segment relate predominanfptmdation Associates Engineering Private Limitéelsco Australia
Limited and Zicom Cesco Engineering Co. Ltd. Thisnsegt manufactures and supply concrete mixers amdfation

equipment including equipment rental continues @oegate positive cash flows. Due to the goodwidit throse at
acquisition of Cesco Australia Limited, an impairmanalysis is performed annually (refer below figcdssion on
Zicom Group Limited).

Precision Engineering and Technologies

Companies included in this segment are Sys-Mac Aatiom Engineering Pte Ltd, Orion Systems Integrafite Ltd,

Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd (entities discussed belomg evestments in associates (refer to note 12etwv). Due to the
goodwill that arose at acquisition of these ergjten annual impairment assessment is performed.

Industrial and Mobile Hydraulics

As noted above, there are no material assetssrsdgment.

Unallocated

The most significant asset in this segment reptedeasehold building which is carried at histdricast adjusted for

accumulated depreciation. Market valuation perfarroe this building in the current financial yeast@nfirmed that
there are no impairment indicators.
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10.

Intangible assets (cont'd)
Impairment tests for goodwill and associates

The Group did not have any intangible assets wittefinite useful life as at 30 June 2018. Goodadljjuired through
business combinations are allocated to the indalidatity which is also the cash generating uni(iJ. These entities
fall within the Precision Engineering and TechnadsgPET) and Construction Equipment (CE) segmentiseosroup
as outlined above.

Basis on
which Pre-tax
As at As at recoverable discount
30.6.2018 30.6.2017 values are rate per
Consolidated determined annum
S$'000 S$°000 2018 2017
Carrying value of capitalised goodwill
based on caslyenerating units
Sys-Mac Automation Engineering Pte Ltd 2,975 2,975 Valueinuse 14%  15%
Zicom Group Limited 1,973 2,070 Value in usel4% 14%
Orion Systems Integration Pte Ltd (“Orion”) 664 664 Valueinuse 19%  24%
Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd (“BBS”) 1,316 1,316 Valueuse 18% 17%

Zicom Energy Solutions Private Limited 282 - - - -

7,210 7,025

In accordance with AASB 136, the carrying valuehef Group's goodwill on acquisition as at 30 Jurfe820as assessed
for impairment.

The businesses in the PET segment are in diff@iesges of development with some of the businedsss to or just
starting commercialisation and others still firmity the product development phase. For all busisessehe PET
segment there were no triggers associated witmteghfeasibility including ability to sell, comgkeor use the projects,
nor any indicators linked to the generation of ok future economic benefits from the projects.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determinegidbas value in use calculations using cash flovjggtmns from
financial budgets approved by management coverifigeayear period. Budgeted revenue and gross mangthe
financial budgets are based on past performancétaedpectation of market development. Long terowgh rate of
1% was used for the above cash generating unitstiat exception of Orion for which 0% was used.

Zicom Group Limited

Goodwill in this CGU relates mainly to Cesco Austaliimited that operates in the construction indugtr the

manufacturing of cement mixers. The recoverable armof the CGU has been determined based on valusen
calculation using cash flow projections from finedudgets that was approved by management cayerib year
period. The cash flows beyond 5 years were exteapdlusing a long term growth rate of 1% based arket

information consistent for the industry it operatesThe cash flows for the first 5 years incluggdwth of between 5%
and 8%.

Sys-Mac Automation Engineering Pte Ltd (“Sys-Mac”)

Sys-Mac is involved in contract manufacturing agdtesm integration which includes machining workssidn and
build of customised automation equipment and syst€he recoverable amount of the CGU has been detedriased
on value in use calculation using cash flow progect from financial budgets that was approved byagament
covering a 5 year period. The cash flows beyonddis/were extrapolated using a long term growth gatl% based
on market information consistent for the industrgperates in. The cash flows for the first 5 yeactuded growth of
between 0% and 100%.
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10.

Intangible assets (cont'd)
Impairment tests for goodwill and associates (cont'd
Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd (“BBS”)

BBS is a medical technology CGU and its main prodsi¢thé iSR’obdt Mona Lisa, an intelligent robotic prostate
biopsy device. BBS is in its early stage of commédisation of its product. The recoverable amountha&f CGU has
been determined based on value in use calculasiog @ash flow projections from financial budgétattwas approved
by management covering a 5 year period. The pegecash flows reflect initial outflows through easdtage
commercialisation and then ramp up based on mahat assumptions through the increased demaiitd fooducts,
consumables and services. The cash flows beyoredrs were extrapolated using a long term growthoal% based
on market information consistent for the industrgperates in. The cash flows for the first 5 yeactuded growth of
between 0% and 60%.

Orion Systems Integration Pte Ltd (“Orion”)

Orion provides equipment with high performance fiibip applications to companies involved in back-en
semiconductor production. Its signature produéthisenix Quadpro, a high speed, fine pitch flip dhopder. Orion is
in its second year of commercial production. Treoverable amount of the CGU has been determined lmasealue
in use calculation using cash flow projections friimancial budgets that was approved by managecwrdring a 5
year period. The projected cash flows reflect eaayp up in 2019 based on market share assumptiomsgh the
increased demand for its products. The cash flawsad extend beyond 5 years as this is consideree the expected
product life cycle. The cash flows for the firsy@ars included growth of between 0% and 100%.

Associates
Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd (“Curiox”)

Curiox is a bioinstrumentation company which is acted for as an associate as disclosed in notk isAnvolved in
the development and commercialisation of innovatissay platforms based on its expertise in sudheenistry and
engineering. It has introduced a series of DropAMicroplates. Curiox’s DA-Cell Plate and Washingt®ta has just
entered the commercialisation stage. The recoveratviount of Curiox has been determined based ore valuse
calculation using cash flow projections from finemtdudgets that was approved by management cayerit year
period. The projected cash flows reflect initiatfaws through early stage commercialisation arehthamp up based
on market share assumptions through the increamednt for its products, consumables and servidescash flows
beyond 5 years were extrapolated using a long tgawth rate of 1% based on market information cstesit for the
industry it operates in. The cash flows for thetfts years included growth of between 0% and 100%.

Interests in the rest of the associates as digtlomsaote 12 were mostly acquired in the last foiahyear and all of
these associates are in the research and develophese of their products. As such, their curremtying values, in
the absence of an impairment trigger, were constlezpresentative of their fair values.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculationdssansitivity to changes in assumptions:
The calculations of value in use (VIU) for the CG#e most sensitive to the following assumptions:

- Gross margins

- Pre-tax discount rates

- Market share assumptions
- Growth rate estimates

- Timing of cash flows

Budgeted gross margins — Gross margins are basadeoage values achieved in the three years pregéunstart of
the budget period or if unavailable, based on mamagmt assessment of the markets. These are iedreasr the
budget period for anticipated efficiency improvenserDecreased demand can lead to a decline in gnasgin. A
decrease in gross margin of 10% would not resudniimmpairment adjustment. Decreases greater D%nray result
in impairment adjustments. This applies to all CGere VIU assessment was required to be performed.
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10.

Intangible assets (cont'd)
Impairment tests for goodwill and associates (cont'd

Pre-tax discount rates — Discount rate reflectctireent market assessment of the risk specifibedGUSs, taking into
consideration the time value of money and individisks of the underlying assets that have not beeorporated in
the cash flow estimates. In determining approgriiscount rates for each unit, regard has beesngdivthe weighted
average cost of capital of the entity as a wholkthae yield on a 10-15 year government bond ab#gnning of the
budgeted year. CGU'’s specific risk is incorporatedhe discount rate by applying individual betatéas. The beta
factors are evaluated annually based on publicjlavie market data. A rise in the pre-tax discoate by 5% or above
may result in impairment adjustments for all CGUs.

Market share assumptions — For businesses that tre early stages of commercialisation such abdiand Curiox,
cash flows in the first 5 years included in the dpetdare determined with reference to industry ddtech effectively
drives the growth profile for these businesses dher initial 5 year period. These assumptions ampoitant as
management assesses how the CGU’s position relativies competitors may change over the forecasioger
Management is expecting its businesses to be takamrget share as the CGUs will be selling new teldgyo An annual
decrease in excess of 25% in forecast revenues basmarket information may result in an impairmadjustment.

Growth rates — These are used to extrapolate tasipfojections beyond the period covered by thetmecent budgets
and are based on management’s assessment of tketsramd do not exceed the long-term average gnatghfor the
industries relevant to the CGUs. Management ackrdiyele that the speed of technological change angabsibility
of new entrants can have a significant impact @wgn rates. Growth rates can also impact on thgimsaachieved by
the CGUs as discussed above. Should the long temvilyrate be reduced by 1%, there is still no impant required.

Timing of cash flows — As indicated above, a numbkthe CGUs in the PET segment are in differeagas of
development with some businesses in early staga®dtict development (research and developmentdameé of them
close to commercialisation with some having staite{burney of commercialisation. For the busiessthat have just
started commercialisation, in particular Orion, Bibland Curiox, a 3 year delay in cash flows wilt mesult in
impairment. A delay of greater than 3 years wiluiein impairment. The rest of the businesseRénRET segment are
predominantly in the research and development phiatbeir respective products. There are curremlyndicators that
these products will not continue to the commerséion phase.

Summary of sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believe that no reasonably possiblegehgnany of the above key assumptions would cthesearrying
values of these CGUs to materially exceed themveble amounts.

For all of the above CGUs and for Curiox, the calted value in use were in excess of the carryinguats of the

assets and as such there were no impairment a@jnstequired for the financial years ended 30 2018 and 2017
for goodwill as their recoverable values were iness of their carrying values.
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11. Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in controlled entities, at cost
Less: Impairment loss

Parent Entity

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
54,544 54,544
(2,322) (3,573)
52,222 50,971

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of Zicom Group Limited and skibsidiaries

listed in the following table.

The carrying amount in each controlled entity hasrbadjusted to assess recoverable amounts orasieds their

underlying assets.

Name of Company Country of Carrying value of Parent
incorporation/ Entity investment
formation
2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Held by the Company:
Cesco Australia Limited Australia 8,047 6,796
Zicom Holdings Private Limited Singapore 44,175 145,
Controlled entities held through subsidiary
companies:
Cesco Equipment Pty Ltd Australia - -
Zicom Private Limited Singapore - -
Zicom Energy Solutions Private Limited (b) Singapor - -
Zicom Equipment Private Limited Singapore - -
Link Vue Systems Pte Ltd (a) Singapore - -
Foundation Associates Engineering Private
Limited Singapore — —
FAE Construction Pte Ltd Singapore - -
FAEQUIP Corporation Philippines - -
FAE Thai Co. Ltd (c) Thailand - -
Sys-Mac Automation Engineering Pte Ltd Singapore - -
MTA-Sysmac Automation Pte Ltd Singapore - -
SAEdge Vision Solutions Pte Ltd Singapore - -
iPtec Pte Ltd Singapore - -
Orion Systems Integration Pte Ltd Singapore - -
Biobot Surgical Pte Ltd Singapore - -
Zicom MedTacc Private Limited Singapore - -
Zicom Innovations Group Private Limited (d) Singepo - -
ZIG Medtech Asia Pte Ltd (e) Singapore - -
PT Sys-Mac Indonesia Indonesia - -
Zicom Cesco Engineering Co. Ltd Thailand - -
Zicom Cesco Thai Co. Ltd Thailand - -
Zicom Thai Hydraulics Co. Ltd Thailand - -
FA Geotech Equipment Sdn Bhd Malaysia - -
Deqing Cesco Machinery Co. Ltd China - -
52,222 50,971

(@) Link Vue Systems Pte Ltd (“Link Vue”)

Percentage
of equity held by
the Group
2018 2017
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
51 -
100 001
72 -
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 -
100 100
61 61
96 96
100 100
98 98
95 95
100 010
100 -
100 -
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

On 26 September 2017, the Group acquired 71.87%yeqterest in Link Vue Systems Pte Ltd, an auttora
company specialised in industrial controls andesyseéngineering, for a cash consideration of S$189,0
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11. Investments in subsidiaries (cont'd)
(b) Zicom Energy Solutions Private Limited (“ZES”)

On 27 October 2017, the Group acquired 51% equotgrést in Zicom Energy Solutions Private Limitadjual
fuel technology company, for a cash consideratio®%510,000.

The net identifiable assets and liabilities aridirmgn the acquisitions of Link Vue and ZES basedoovisional

values were:
Link Vue ZES
S$'000 S$°000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment - 3
Inventories 89 -
Trade and other receivables 157 1
Cash and bank balances 102 452
348 456
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 148 9
Total identifiable net assets 200 447
Non-controlling interests measured at its propodte share
of net identifiable assets (56) (219)
Intangible assets arising from acquisition 45 282
189 510
Effects of acquisition on cash flows
Total consideration 189 510
Cash and bank balances of subsidiary company adquire (102) (452)
Net cash outflow on acquisition 87 58

(c) FAE Thai Co. Ltd (“FAE Thai")
On 11 October 2017, FAE Thai Co. Ltd was incorpatrate Thailand by Foundation Associates Engineering
Private Limited, both wholly-owned subsidiariestiwa paid-up capital of THB2,500,000 (S$104,000)EFAai
is principally engaged in trading and rental ofrfdation equipment and the provision of constructiervices.

(d) Zicom Innovations Group Private Limited

On 27 October 2017, Zicom Innovations Group Pridédtaited was incorporated by Zicom Holdings Private
Limited, both wholly-owned subsidiaries, with agbaip capital of S$1.

(e) ZIG Medtech Asia Pte Ltd (“ZMA”)
On 22 February 2018, ZIG Medtech Asia Pte Ltd imasrporated by Zicom Innovations Group Private itéa,

both wholly-owned subsidiaries, with a paid-up tapf S$2. ZMA is principally engaged in the distition of
medical and surgical supplies.
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Investments in subsidiaries (cont'd)
Entity subject to class order relief

Pursuant to the ASIC Corporations (Wholly-owned Coniges) Instrument 2016/785, relief has been grattégiesco
Australia Limited (“CAL”") and Cesco Equipment PtydL‘CEPL") from theCorporations Act 200tequirements for
the preparation, audit and lodgement of their faiarreports.

As a condition for the relief, a Deed of Cross Gusga was executed between Zicom Group Limited (“2@hd CAL

on 15 May 2008. The effect of the Deed is that Z(&k guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the esewinding up
of CAL or if CAL does not meet its obligations undbe terms of overdraft, loans, leases or othéiliiees subject to
the guarantee.

CAL has also given a similar guarantee in the eteatt ZGL is wound up or if it does not meet itsigations under
the terms of overdraft, loans and leases or otabilities subject to the guarantee.

On 9 May 2013, CEPL executed a Deed of Assumptidim #GL so that CEPL is joined to the Deed of Crosar@ntee
and assumes liability under and be bound by thelD&€ross Guarantee as if CEPL was a Group Entigrvthe Deed
of Cross Guarantee was executed.

The consolidated Income Statement and Balance Sifieke entities that are members of the Closed (Giare as
follows:

Consolidated Income Statement Closed Group

2018 2017

S$'000 S$°000
Profit from continuing activities before taxation ,065 1,248
Income tax benefit 311 -
Net profit for the year 1,376 1,248
Accumulated losses at the beginning of year (23,209 (23,651)
Forfeiture of employee share options 4 3
Dividends paid - (809)
Accumulated losses at the end of year (21,829) (23,209)
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11.

12.

Investments in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Cash and bank balances
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Current liabilities
Payables
Interest-bearing liabilities
Provisions

NET CURRENT ASSETS

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities
Provisions

NET ASSETS

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent
Share capital

Reserves

Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

Investments in associates

(@ Investment details

Principal place of

Held through subsidiaries business
Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd Singapore
Histolndex Pte Ltd Singapore
Endofotonics Pte Ltd Singapore
BELKIN Laser Ltd Israel
Pellucid Networks Pte Ltd Singapore
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Closed Group

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
1,286 456
358 377
302 -
44,175 44,175
46,121 45,008
1,163 1,772
4,499 3,229
4,647 3,549
19 15
10,328 8,565
4,749 3,492
206 39
470 467
5,425 3,998
4,903 4,567
421 61
112 115
533 176
50,491 49,399
72,322 72,322
2 286
(21,829) (23,209)
50,491 49,399
Consolidated
2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
5,107 5,266
871 1,301
706 907
1,196 1,374
918 600
8,798 9,448
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12. Investments in associates (cont'd)

(b)  Movements in carrying amount of the Group’sasivnents in associates

Curiox Biosystems Pte Ltd (“Curiox”)
Shareholdings held: 72.28% (2017: 73.02%)

Consolidated

2018 2017
S$°000 S$'000
At beginning of year 5,266 5,295
Additional investment 276 323
Share of loss after income tax (393) (301)
Share of other comprehensive income 2 (29)
Unrealised profits (44) (32)
At end of year 5,107 5,266

On 8 September 2017, 138,000 preference sharesalleted to Zicom Holdings Private Limited (“ZHP)for a
cash consideration of S$276,000 pursuant to thairéng tranche of the non-renounceable rights isBue to
allotment for excess rights applications to sonaeiolders, the Group’s interest in Curiox decreasé®.75%.

On 1 February 2018, 22,000 preference shares s&ued to directors of Curiox as part payment afadins’ fees
and 5,500 ordinary shares were issued under theXCHrinployee Share and Option Plan. As a resulhisf t
allotment, the Group’s interest in Curiox decreaseti2.28%.

Although ZHPL holds the majority of voting rights Curiox, it does not have the power and practibdity to
direct the relevant activities of Curiox unilateyadind hence, Curiox remains an associate of thepGaewat 30

June 2018.
HistoIndex Pte Ltd (“Histolndex”)
Shareholdings held: 10.88% (2017: 10.88%) Consolidated
2018 2017

S$°000 S$'000
At beginning of year 1,301 1,591
Share of loss after income tax (419) (288)
Unrealised profits (12) (2)
At end of year 871 1,301

Histolndex entered into a convertible loan agreg¢nmen6 June 2018 with Zicom MedTacc Private Limited
(“ZMT”) and various investors, collectively the “hders”, to which the Lenders have granted convertifmns
aggregating S$1,000,000 to HistoIndex. The corertoans earns interest at 5% per annum and megrberted
into ordinary shares at a discounted price uporotioeirrence of pre-defined events or repaid upoturitgon 5
June 2021.

Although the Group holds less than 20% of equitgriest, the Group has the ability to exercise figamt influence
through its shareholdings and participation ondlietex Board of Directors.

Endofotonics Pte Ltd (“Endofotonics”)

Shareholdings held: 21.89% (2017: 21.89%) Consolidated
2018 2017
S$°000 S$'000
At beginning of year 907 -
Investment during the year - 1,000
Share of loss after income tax (201) (93)
At end of year 706 907

Under the terms of the investment, ZMT can acqaitditional shares through options and achievingairer
milestones. The changes in fair value of the ogtioas assessed as being not significant as an@020138.
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12. Investments in associates (cont'd)
(b) Movements in carrying amount of the Group’sasivnents in associates (cont'd)

BELKIN Laser Ltd (“BELKIN")

Shareholdings held: 16.66% (2017: 16.66%) Consolidated
2018 2017
S$°000 S$'000
At beginning of year 1,374 -
Investment during the year - 1,416
Share of loss after income tax (178) (42)
At end of year 1,196 1,374

Although the Group holds less than 20% of eqintgrest, the Group has the ability to exercisaifigant
influence through its shareholdings and particggatin BELKIN Board of Directors.

Pellucid Networks Pte Ltd (“Pellucid”)

Shareholdings held: 11.51% (2017: 8.23%) Consolidated
2018 2017
S$°000 S$'000
At beginning of year 600 -
Investment during the year 400 600
Share of loss after income tax (82) -
At end of year 918 600

Although the Group holds less than 20% of eqintgrest, the Group has the ability to exercisenificant
influence through its shareholdings and particgpratin Pellucid Board of Directors.

(c) Summarised financial information

The following table illustrates summarised finahardormation relating to the Group’s material istament in

associate:
Curiox
2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Current assets 1,960 2,198
Non-current assets 1,155 623
3,115 2,821
Current liabilities (856) (556)
Net assets 2,259 2,265
Add: Fair value adjustments arising from acquisitio 271 328
2,530 2,593
Proportion of Group’s investment 72.28% 73.02%
Share of net assets 1,829 1,893
Goodwill 3,428 3,478
Less: Unrealised profits (147) (103)
Less: Other equity transactions (3) (2)
Group’s carrying amount of investment in assecia 5,107 5,266

- 67 -



Zicom Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(In Singapore dollars)

12. Investments in associates (cont'd)

(¢) Summarised financial information (cont’d)

Curiox
2018 2017

S$'000 S$'000

Results :
Revenue 2,213 1,955
Cost of goods sold (526) (267)
1,687 1,688
Other income 123 272
Operating expenses (2,287) (2,309)
Loss before tax 477) (349)
Income tax expense (4) (2)
(481) (351)
Add: Fair value adjustments arising from acquisitio (60) (60)
Net loss for the year (541) (411)
Other comprehensive income 2 (26)
Total comprehensive income (539) (437)
Group’s share of loss for the year (393) (301)
Group’s share of other comprehensive income 2 (29)

13. Inventories
Consolidated

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Raw materials/trading stocks (at cost or net realisaalue) 18,902 15,437
Work-in-progress (at cost) 6,191 4,792
Finished goods (at cost) 2,097 2,171
Stocks-in-transit (at cost) 817 745
Total inventories at lower of cost and net realisatalue 28,007 23,145

Inventories recognised as cost of sales for the gieded 30 June 2018 totalled S$50,335,000 (20854,280,000) for
the Group.
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14. Current assets - receivables
Consolidated

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Trade receivables (a) 19,461 15,502
Allowance for impairment loss (b) (1,087) (680)
18,374 14,822
Advance payments to suppliers 1,363 2,416
Deposits 100 86
Related party receivables (c) :
- Associates
- trade 361 278
- non-trade 158 233
- Other related parties
- trade 142 61
- non-trade - 3
Other receivables 1,304 1,296
21,802 19,195

(@) Please refer to note 21(d) for the ageing anabfsisade receivables past due but not impaired.

(b) Trade and other receivables are non-interest lypariad are generally due when invoiced or on 300tal&ys’
terms. An allowance for impairment loss is recogdisvhen there is objective evidence that an indadid
receivable is impaired.

The Group has trade receivables that were impairélae balance sheet date and the movements prakision
for impairment are as follows:

Consolidated
Individually impaired
Trade receivables

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Nominal amounts 1,087 680
Less : allowance for impairment (1,087) (680)
Movements in allowance accounts :
As at 1 July 680 309
Acquisition of subsidiary company 7 -
Charge for the year 423 519
Written off - (44)
Unused amounts reversed (20) (207)
Currency realignment (3) 3
As at 30 June 1,087 680

(c) For related party receivables, please refer to B8tfor terms and conditions.
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15. Gross amount due from/(to) customers for contract wrk

Consolidated

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Contract costs incurred to date 6,249 4,005
Recognised profits (less recognised losses) to date 1,023 2,369
7,272 6,374
Progress billings (4,889) (3,088)
Amount due from customers for contract work, net 383, 3,286
Gross amount due from customers for contract work 4,227 3.305
Gross amount due to customers for contract work ,844) (29)
2,383 3,286
Advances received included in gross amount duestomers for
contract work 217 -
Revenue recognised on projects is disclosed inFote
16. Current liabilities - payables
Consolidated
2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Trade payables and accruals (a) 17,879 16,095
Advance received from customers 997 3,528
Related party payables (b)
- Associates
- trade - 21
- Other related parties
- trade 18 9
- non-trade 17 9
Other payables 211 265
Unrealised loss on derivatives - 64
19,122 19,991

(@) All amounts are non-interest bearing and are ndyrsattled on 30 to 90 days’ terms.

(b) For related parties’ payables, please refer to B8tfor terms and conditions.
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17.

Interest-bearing liabilities
Consolidated
2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Current
Bank overdrafts (a) 783 352
Bills payable (b) 4,469 4,164
Factory loans (c) - 42
Term loans (d) 11,409 4,941
Loans from a related party (e) 1,352 -
Lease liabilities (note 25) 394 436
18,407 9,935
Non-current
Term loans (d) 421 61
Lease liabilities (note 25) 243 591
664 652

Details of the secured borrowings are as follows:

(a) Bank overdraft amounting to S$305,000 (2017: S$38Y),@hich bears interest at floating rates randfiom 6.00%
t0 6.25% (2017: 6.03% to 6.28%) per annum is sedoyeorporate guarantee from Zicom Holdings Pevamited
(“ZHPL™).

Bank overdraft of S$306,000 (2017: S$nil) which keaterest at floating rate of approximately 7.7086 annum
is secured by a corporate guarantee from Zicom Cesgmeering Co. Ltd

Bank overdraft of S$125,000 (2017: S$nil) which keaterest at floating rate of approximately 7.7086 annum
is secured by a legal mortgage on the subsidiampany’s freehold land and buildings at 700/895 Modmata
Nakorn Industrial Estate, Chonburi, Thailand armbgoorate guarantee from ZHPL.

The remaining bank overdraft of S$47,000 (2017:ilp®rich bears interest at fixed rate of 7.87% aenum is
secured by a corporate guarantee from the Company.

(b) Bills payable amounting to S$1,419,000 (2017: S$3(®J0) with an average maturity of 2 - 5 monthsl2Q - 4
months) bear fixed interest rates until expiry,giag from 1.78% to 4.70% (2017: 2.40% to 3.55%) gr@mum, at
which point interest rate resets and are securedldmyporate guarantee given by ZHPL.

Bills payable amounting to S$3,050,000 (2017: S$mith a maturity of 4 months bear fixed interesesauntil
expiry, ranging from 3.39% to 3.40% per annum, hicWv point interest rate resets and are secureal $scond
legal mortgage on ZHPL's leasehold building at B®Tuas Avenue 3 Singapore 639420 and a corponarawgtee
from ZHPL.

The remaining bills payable outstanding as at 3@ 2017 of S$188,000 with a maturity of 2 montheelfixed

interest rate of 3.69% per annum until expiry anakvsecured by a corporate guarantee from Zicom Cesco

Engineering Co. Ltd.

(c) Factory loan outstanding as at 30 June 2017 armmayiai S$42,000 which bore interest at floatinggatnging
from 2.90% to 3.05% per annum was fully repaid migithe year. It was secured by a legal mortgagéHPL’s
leasehold building at No. 9 Tuas Avenue 9 Singap8&198 and a corporate guarantee from the Company.

(d) Term loans amounting to S$145,000 (2017: S$100,60@)prising of current and long-term portions 068$00
(2017: S$39,000) and S$91,000 (2017: S$61,000)ctsply which are secured by a fixed charge oher t
purchased motor vehicles and equipment are pagakle3 to 5 years (2017: 3 to 4 years) and bearest at fixed
rates of 4.12% to 5.40% (2017: 4.12% to 4.39% )qoeum.

Term loan amounting to S$435,000 (2017: S$nil) casimy of current and long-term portions of S$1@8,&nd

S$330,000 respectively is repayable over 4 yeaidanar interest at fixed rate of 5.51% per annais.decured by
a fixed charge over the purchased equipment andp@i@te guarantee from Cesco Australia Limited.
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17.

Interest-bearing liabilities (cont’d)

(e)

®

Term loan outstanding as at 30 June 2017 amouttti8§833,000 which bore interest at floating radeging from
2.85% to 3.10% per annum and secured by a corpguat@ntee given by ZHPL was fully repaid during ylear.

Term loan outstanding as at 30 June 2017 amoumtin§$1,069,000 which bore interest at floating rate
approximately 3.65% per annum and secured by & fegegage on the subsidiary company'’s freeholdl land

buildings at 700/895 Moo 2, Amata Nakorn Industkatate, Chonburi, Thailand and a corporate guagdnden

ZHPL was fully repaid during the year.

The remaining term loan outstanding as at 30 J@& 2amounting to S$200,000 which bore interestoattihg
rates ranging from 2.90% to 3.05 per annum andredday a legal mortgage on ZHPL'’s leasehold bugdihNo.
9 Tuas Avenue 9 Singapore 639198 and a corporat@agiee from ZGL was fully repaid during the year.

Short term loans with tenures of 1 — 3 months (28176 months) amounting to S$2,300,000 (2017;&¥2000)
bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 3.3998.8¥% (2017: 2.77% to 3.24%) per annum and is selchy a
corporate guarantee given by ZHPL.

A revolving credit line of S$5,000,000 (2017: S$iidr a term of 10 years was offered to ZHPL wharewdown

can be made in tranches for a tenure of 1, 2 oo#tins and thereafter, rollover as required. Thidifg which is

secured by a legal mortgage on ZHPL's leaseholdingi at No. 9 Tuas Avenue 9 Singapore 639198 angocate
guarantees from the Company and Zicom Private Eiinghall be reduced by an annual reduction of S$800
commencing on 28 August 2018. As at 30 June 28%8,000,000 has been drawn down with tenures abrittm
bearing interest at fixed rates until expiry, ranggirom 2.75% to 3.00% per annum, at which poimeriest rate
resets.

Short term loan of S$3,000,000 (2017: S$nil) wittelan of 5 years was granted to Zicom Private Leéghitvhere
drawdown can be made in tranches for a tenure®bt 6 months and thereatfter, rollover as requirEdis facility
which is subject to a monthly reduction of S$50,86hmencing on 16 June 2018 is secured by a legabage
on ZHPL'’s leasehold building at No. 5 Tuas Avenu8idgapore 639490 and a corporate guarantee froRLZH
As at 30 June 2018, S$2,950,000 is outstandingtefthres of 1 and 3 months bearing interest atl frates until
expiry, ranging from 2.66% to 2.73% per annum, laictv point, interest rate resets.

The remaining short term loan with a tenure of 3ithe amounting to S$1,000,000 (2017: S$nil) wheckdcured
by a first legal mortgage on ZHPL's leasehold hinddat No. 29 Tuas Avenue 3 Singapore 639420 hintarest
at fixed rate at 2.89% per annum until expiry, htalu point, interest rate resets.

Loans from a related party amounting to S$1,352(Q0Q7: S$nil) which bear interest at fixed rat&®f per annum
have a maturity of 3 months which may be extenflegjuired.

Financing facilities available

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had available S$003)00 (2017: S$99,000,000) of undrawn committeddvang
facilities and all bank covenants were compliechwit
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18. Provisions
Consolidated

2018 2017
S$°000 S$'000
Current
Product warranties 1,494 1,918
Employee benefits 388 363
1,882 2,281
Non-current
Employee benefits 260 242
Reinstatement costs 154 156
414 398
Movements in provision for warranties:
At beginning of year 1,918 720
Additional provision 612 1,536
Unused amounts reversed (509) 171)
Utilised (513) (166)
Currency realignment (14) (2)
At end of year 1,494 1,918
Warranty expense charged directly to profit or Ipsse 5) 3 4
Movements in provision for employee benefits:
At beginning of year 605 534
Additional provision 77 91
Unused amounts reversed (13) (33)
Utilised 2) (16)
Currency realignment (19) 29
At end of year 648 605
Movements in provision for reinstatement costs:
At beginning of year 156 154
Currency realignment 2) 2
At end of year 154 156

Provision for expected warranty claims is recoghisa hydraulic deck machineries, gas processingtqldlip chip
bonders and robotic systems supplied. Assumptised to calculate these provisions were based ertairt percentage
of sale values and past experience of the levedpdirs and returns based on the two-year wargzeripd.

In accordance with the lease agreements, the Graugh reinstate certain subsidiaries’ leased presriis&ingapore
and Australia to its original condition at the esfdhe lease term.

Because of the long-term nature of liability, theajest uncertainty in estimating the provisiorhis ¢osts that will
ultimately be incurred.
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19. Share capital

20.

Parent Entity Consolidated
2018 2017 2018 2017
No. of shares (Thousands) S$'000 S$'000
Ordinary fully paid shares 217,141 217,141 38,314 38,314

Theholders of ordinary shares are entitled to recdividends as and when declared by the Company. rdlhary
shares carry one vote per share without restriction

There were no movements in share capital for hotim€ial years.

Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated

2018 2017

S$'000 S$'000
Cash at bank and in hand 9,465 18,591
Short-term fixed deposits 274 -
9,739 18,591

For the purpose of statement of the consolidatetl #aws, cash and cash equivalents comprise fleniog as at 30
June:

Cash and short-term deposits 9,739 18,591
Bank overdrafts (783) (352)
8,956 18,239

Cash at bank balance amounting to S$522,000 as &tir802018 (2017: S$234,000) earned interest atirftp rate
based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from.803.08% (2017: 0.30% to 2.16%) per annum.

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods déy to 3 months depending on the immediate mghirements
of the Group and earn interest at the respectigg-$arm rates.

Included in short-term fixed deposits are amoufitS$84,000 (2017: S$nil) pledged for facilities.
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21.

Financial instruments

@)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and paslici

The Group and the Company are exposed to finanisid arising from its operations and the use odritial
instruments. The key financial risks include creik, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fogei currency risk. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies andgulures for the management of these risks. ThapGenters
into derivative transactions, principally foreigorency forward contracts, purpose is to manageenuay risk
arising from the Group’s operations and sourcefinahce. The Group does not apply hedge accoumtinguch
derivatives.

The following sections provide details regarding GBroup's exposure to the above-mentioned finarnisied and
the objectives, policies and processes for the gemnant of these risks.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatuduture cash flows of the Group’s financial instrents will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arisgagrily from loans and borrowings which have fiogtinterest
rates. The Group’s policy with respect to coningilthis risk is linked to a regular review of tte¢al debt position
and assessment of the impact of adverse changeteiest rates applicable to new and existing deaditities.
Consideration is given to potential renewal of éngspositions, alternative financing, alternativexlbing positions
and mix of fixed and variable interest rates. & balance sheet date, the Group had the follomingf financial
assets and liabilities exposed to variable intawastrisk:

Consolidated

2018 2017
S$'000 S$'000
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 522 234
Financial liabilities
Bank overdrafts 736 352
Factory loan - 42
Term loans — 2,102
736 2,496

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk

As at 30 June 2018, if interest rates had increédeetkased by 25 basis point with all other vaealbleld constant,
post-tax loss for the consolidated entity for timamcial year would be S$1,000 (2017: S$5,000) dviiwer, as a
result of the higher/lower interest rates. Accogliimthe Group’s equity as at year-end will be ($90)/S$1,000
(2017: (S$5,000)/S$5,000) lower/higher.
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21. Financial instruments (cont'd)
(c) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk occurs as a result of theupitransactions that are not denominated in tlespective
functional currencies. These transactions arise filee Group's ordinary course of business. The Btmnsacts
business in various currencies and as a resuéirgely exposed to movements in exchange ratenagét) States
dollar, Euro, Bangladeshi Taka and Australian dollar

The Group manages its foreign exchange exposuagblicy of matching, as far as possible, recapts payments
in each individual currency. The Group also usesim currency forward contracts to hedge a pomibits future

foreign exchange exposure purely as a hedgingatiodldoes not take positions in currencies witheavvio make
speculative gains from currency movements.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on theeign exchange risk exposure in existence ab#tence sheet
date. As at 30 June, if exchange rates had moweilusatrated in the table below, with all otheriahles held
constant, post-tax results and equity would haenlzdfected as follows:

2018 2017

Consolidated S$°000 S$°000
usbD

- strengthened 1% (2017: 1%) 40 42

- weakened 2% (2017: 2%) (79) (83)
EURO

- strengthened 2% (2017: 4%) 3 24

- weakened 1% (2017: 2%) Q) (12)
AUD

- strengthened 2% (2017: 3%) 8 30

- weakened 2% (2017: 3%) (8) (30)
BDT

- strengthened 2% (2017: 2%) - 3)

- weakened 2% (2017: 2%) - 3

(d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise otstanding financial instruments should a counteayp@efault on its
obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit riskes primarily from trade and other receivables.

The Group’s objective is to seek continual revegieoevth while minimising losses incurred due to eased credit
risk exposure. The Group trades only with recoghés®l creditworthy third parties. Credit risk is ritored through
careful selection of customers and their balancesm@nitored on an ongoing basis with the resalt the Group’s
exposure to bad debts has not been significant.
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21. Financial instruments (cont'd)
(d) Credit risk (cont'd)
Credit risk concentration profile

The Group determines concentration of credit righkrionitoring the country profile of its trade regahles on an
on-going basis. The credit risk concentration ifgaif the Group’s trade receivables at the balasheet date is as

follows:
Consolidated
2018 2017

S$'000 % of total S$'000 % of total
Austria 137 0.7 137 0.9
Australia 3,758 20.5 3,038 20.5
Bangladesh 1,979 10.8 473 3.2
France 56 0.3 126 0.8
Hong Kong 178 1.0 24 0.2
Indonesia 120 0.7 395 2.7
Italy 120 0.7 88 0.6
Malaysia 966 5.3 1,575 10.6
New Zealand 100 0.5 10 0.1
People’s Republic of China 229 1.2 609 4.1
Philippines 88 0.5 130 0.9
Singapore 4,848 26.4 4,289 28.9
Taiwan 4,207 22.9 3,522 23.8
Thailand 1,085 5.9 250 1.7
United States of America 99 0.5 106 0.7
Vietnam 300 1.6 - -
Others 104 0.5 50 0.3

18,374 100 14,822 100

At the balance sheet date, approximately 56.9%71208.7%) of the Group’s trade receivables were fdua 9
(2017: 5) major customers.

Financial assets that are not impaired

Trade and other receivables that are not impairedvéth creditworthy debtors with good payment relso Cash
and short term deposits are placed with reputadoiéd

As at 30 June 2018, the ageing analysis of trackivables that are past due but not impaired felkmsvs:

Consolidated

2018 2017

S$'000 S$'000

Less than 30 days 5,748 2,393
30 to 60 days 602 868
61 to 90 days 780 254
91 to 120 days 374 131
More than 120 days 2,331 1,206
9,835 4,852

As at 30 June 2018, trade receivables amountig$ig766,000 (2017: S$645,000) were arranged tettled via
letters of credit issued by reputable banks in tesiwhere the customers were based.

Financial assets that are impaired
Please refer to note 14 for details.
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21. Financial instruments (cont'd)
(e) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will enaoter difficulty in meeting financial obligationsid to shortage of
funds. The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk asiggimarily from mismatches of the maturities efdincial assets

and liabilities.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance leetwcontinuity of funding and flexibility throughe use of
stand-by credit facilities.

The following table summarises the maturity profiethe Group’s financial assets and liabilitiesls balance
sheet date based on contractual undiscounted p&ymé@me expected timing of actual cash flows frivase
financial instruments may differ.

After 1 year
but not more
1 year orless than5 years 5to 10 years Total

Consolidated S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
2018
Financial assets:
Trade receivables 18,055 — — 18,055
Other receivables 1,478 — — 1,478
Loan receivable — 1,270 — 1,270
Cash and bank balances 9,739 — — 9,739
Total undiscounted financial assets 29,272 1,270 — 30,542
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 12,355 - - 12,355
Other payables 5,266 - - 5,266
Loans and borrowings 17,192 715 - 17,907
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 34,813 715 - 35,528
Total net undiscounted financial
assets/(liabilities) (5,541) 555 - (4,986)
2017
Financial assets:
Trade receivables 14,677 - - 14,677
Other receivables 1,521 - - 1,521
Loan receivable - 690 - 690
Cash and bank balances 18,591 - - 18,591
Total undiscounted financial assets 34,789 690 — 35,479
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 7,291 — — 7,291
Other payables 6,629 — - 6,629
Unrealised loss on derivatives 64 - - 64
Loans and borrowings 10,057 688 — 10,745
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 24,041 688 — 24,729
Total net undiscounted financial assets 10,748 2 — 10,750
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21. Financial instruments (cont'd)

®

Fair values

@

(ii)

(i)

Fair value of financial instruments that are cauliat fair value
As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no financiatungnts measured at fair value.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had the followingrfiial liabilities measured at fair value:

Quoted prices in  Significant
active markets other Significant
for identical observable unobservable
instruments inputs inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
S$°000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Consolidated
Financial liabilities:
Derivatives — foreign currency
64 - 64

forward contracts -

The fair value of foreign currency forward contsaetre derived from mark-to-market valuations using
theoretical valuation model which incorporates @asi inputs such as foreign exchange spot and fdrwar
rates, volatility, tenure, time value and forwaates curves of the underlying commaodity.

There were no transfers between level 1 and lefal alue measurements during the financial yeais8
and 2017.

Fair value of financial instruments by classes tha not carried at fair value and whose carryingamts
are reasonable approximation of fair value

Management has determined that the carrying amairdash and short-term deposits, current trade and
other receivables, current trade and other payahiesrent interest-bearing liabilities reasonably
approximate their fair values because they arelynsisort-term in nature and repriced frequently.

Fair value of financial instruments by classes tha not carried at fair value and whose carryingamts
are not reasonable approximation of fair value

The fair values of non-current finance lease liib§ and bank loans bearing interest at fixedsratéich
are not carried at fair value in the balance sharet,presented in the following table. The failueais
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis udiscpunt rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowate at
the end of the reporting period. The Group’s own-performance risk as at 30 June 2018 was ass&ssed
be insignificant.

Consolidated

Carrying Amount Fair Value
2018 2017 2018 2017
S$'000 S$°000 S$'000 S$°000
Financial liabilities :
Bank loans 421 61 359 56
Obligations under finance leases 243 591 230 567
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22. Capital Management

The Group’s primary objective when managing caitalcture is to maintain an efficient mix of dabt equity in order
to achieve a low cost of capital while taking irocount the desirability of retaining financialxilgility to pursue
business opportunities and adequate access tditigjto mitigate the effect of unforeseen eventcash flows.

The Group regularly reviews the Company’s capitalcitire and make adjustments to reflect economialitions,
business strategies and future commitments. Thagamay adjust the amount of dividends paid to di@ders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares orsstaor increase borrowings. No changes were indtle objectives,
policies and processes during the years endedrg02l 8 and 30 June 2017.

Management monitors capital through the gearirig (aet debt / total capital). The Group definesdebts as interest-
bearing liabilities less cash and cash equivaléegpital includes equity attributable to the eqhityders of the Parent
and reserves. The Group’s policy is to keep itzigg ratio at less than 50%.

The gearing ratios as at 30 June 2018 and 30 Jheveere as follows:
Consolidated

2018 2017

S$'000 S$'000
Interest-bearing liabilities (note 17) 19,071 B15
Less: bank overdrafts (note 17) (783) (352)
18,288 10,235
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 20) (8,956) 18,239)
Net debt 9,332 (8,004)
Equity attributable to holders of the Parent 69,333 80,257
Gearing ratio 13.46% -

23. Related party disclosures

In addition to the related party information dis#d elsewhere in the financial statements, theVatig are transactions
with related parties at mutually agreed terms andumts:

(@) Sale and purchase of goods and services
Consolidated

2018 2017

S$'000 S$'000
Minority shareholder of a subsidiary company
- Sales 1,200 276
- Purchases 28 33
Associates
- Sales 638 933
- Purchases - 62
- Interest income 33 21
- Rental & utilities income 173 115
- Services rendered 683 365
Other related parties
- Sales 28 -
- Services rendered — 6

(b) Terms and conditions of transactions witlated parties

Sales to and purchases from related parties are atagrm’s length basis at normal market pricesandormal
commercial terms.

Outstanding non-trade balances as at year-endrelited parties are unsecured, interest-free awe ha fixed

terms of repayment. For information regarding turtding balances on related party receivables aydhpes at
year-end, please refer to notes 14 and 16.
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23. Related party disclosures (cont'd)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel
Consolidated

2018 2017
S$ S$
Short-term employee benefits 1,407,101 1,442,745
Post-employment benefits 45,060 44,010
Share-based payments - 17,892
Total compensation 1,452,161 1,504,647

24. Share-based payment plans
(@) Recognised share-based payment expenses

The expense recognised for employee services exteiuring the year for equity-settled share-basadnent
transactions amounted to S$155,000 (2017: S$43,000)

There have been no cancellations or modificatiorthé plan during the years 2018 and 2017.
(b) Description of the share-based payment plan
Zicom Employee Share and Option Plan (“ZESOP”)
Share options are granted to employees as an ineeatretain experience and attract talent. UrterZESOP,
the exercise price of the options approximatesrheket price of the shares on the grant dates. |d&m@ps must

remain in service for a period of 1 to 3 years.

Should an employee leave the company or resign ffiisroffice, any vested options not exercised godhat date
will be lost except for exceptional circumstancestsas death, physical or mental incapacity.

The contractual life of each option granted is 3 ygears. There are no cash-settlement alternatives

(c) Movements during the year

2018 2017

No. of options (Thousands)
Outstanding at beginning of year 2,680 2,750
Forfeited during the year (70) (70)
Outstanding at end of year 2.610 2.680
Exercisable at end of year 2,610 2,680

The outstanding balance of share options as ati3® 2018 and 30 June 2017 is represented by:

No. of options (Thousands) Exercise price Exereible Expiry Date
2018 2017 (Australian Cents) on or after
2,010 2,080 20.5 1/11/2016 31/10/2019
600 600 18.0 1/12/2016 30/11/2020
2,610 2,680
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25. Commitments
(@ Commitments
As at year-end, the Group has issued letters abgtee amounting to S$10,724,000 (2017: S$11,60%,00
(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group has entered into commercial leases utle of leasehold properties and office equiprasriessee.

These leases have an average of 2 to 30 yearse dileeno restrictions placed upon the Group berang into these
leases.

Future minimum lease payments for the leases dielawss:
Consolidated

2018 2017

S$'000 S$'000
Within 1 year 2,136 2,147
Within 2 - 5 years 4,744 5,078
More than 5 years 4,344 4,577
11,224 11,802

The amount of operating lease payments recognised axpense in the year ended 30 June 2018 iS(S$200
(2017: S$2,382,000).

(c) Finance lease commitments

The Group has finance leases for various itemdasft@nd equipment. Future minimum lease paymemder
finance leases together with present value of #ieminimum lease payments are as follows:

Minimum Present value Minimum Present value
payments of payments payments of payments
2018 2018 2017 2017
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
Consolidated
Due within one year 408 394 455 436
After one year but not more than
five years 260 243 625 591
Total minimum lease payments 668 637 1,080 1,027
Less: amounts representing
finance charges (31) - (53) -
637 637 1,027 1,027

(d) Capital commitments

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has committed tocsiblesto the non-renounceable rights issue by Eotdofcs Pte
Ltd for a cash consideration of S$222,000 (note 28)
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26. Auditors’ remuneration

During the year, the following fees were paid/pdgdbr services provided by auditors:
Consolidated

2018 2017
S$ S$

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernsb&ny (Australia) for:
- Audit and review of financial statements 148,363 136,474
- Taxation services 19,764 12,388
Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernsb&nyg (Singaport for:
- Audit and review of financial statements 255,000 243,000
Amounts received or due and receivable by otheit dinchs for:
- Audit and review of financial statements 25,741 24,307
- Taxation services 4,464 4,450
- Other non-audit services - 2,000

453,332 422,619
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27. Parent Entity disclosures

(a) The individual financial statements of the Paremtitlf shows the following aggregate amounts:

2018 2017

S$'000 S$'000
Balance sheet
Non-current assets 52,222 50,971
Current assets 2,089 2,066
Total assets 54,311 53,037
Current liabilities 198 55
Total liabilities 198 55
Net assets 54,113 52,982
Equity
Share capital (i) 71,850 71,850
Share capital - exercise of share options 472 472
Capital reserve 688 688
Foreign currency translation reserve (423) (338)
Share-based payments reserve 153 165
Accumulated losses (18,627) (19,855)

54,113 52,982
Results
Profit for the year 1,224 1,081
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 1,224 1,081

(i) The share capital of the Parent Entity differs frivat of the consolidated entity due to the revéageover
which took place in 2006. Accordingly, the Parentify which is the legal parent is accounted fortlas
acquiree for accounting purposes.

(b) Guarantees

(i) The Parent Entity has issued letters of guaranteriating to S$5,047,000 (2017: S$242,000) to secade
facilities and bank loans for controlled entities.

(i) The Parent Entity has entered into a Deed of Crasmahtee and the subsidiaries subject to the deed i
disclosed in note 11.

(c) Contingent liabilities

The Parent Entity has no contingent liabilities80 June 2018 and 30 June 2017.
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28. Subsequent events

(@) Investment in Endofotonics Pte Ltd
On 28 August 2018, 1,058,201 ordinary shares wéodtesl to Zicom MedTacc Private Limited for a cash
consideration of S$222,000 pursuant to the sultsmnipf a non-renounceable rights issue by EndaoictoPte Ltd
(“Endofotonics”). As a result of this allotmentgtiBroup’s interest in Endofotonics increased t@2%.

(b) Demerger of technology businesses
On 29 August 2018, the Board resolved to approwijest to final approval by shareholders, for theposes of
Section 256B of th€orporations Act 2001that the Company shall demerge Zicom MedTacc Rrikamited from
the Group, in a form of pro-rata capital reductmndistributing all the issued ordinary shares ioofh MedTacc
Private Limited to the Company’s shareholders.

(c) Disposal of SAEdge Vision Solutions Pte Ltd
On 31 August 2018, Sys-Mac Automation Engineeritgglid (“Sys-Mac”) completed the disposal of it9®équity
interest in SAEdge Vision Solutions Pte Ltd (“SAEtgto Emage Vision Pte Ltd (“EV”) for a considdmat of
S$3,473,000, satisfied by the allotment of 43,3%6Méting shares to Sys-Mac, representing an eqdnotsrest of
14.88% in EV.

(d) On 7 September 2018, Zicom MedTacc Private Limifeahged its name to ZIG Ventures Private Limited.
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Directors’ Declaration

In accordance with a resolution of the Director&izbm Group Limited, | state that:

In the opinion of the Directors:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

the financial statements and notes of the congelidantity for the financial year ended 30 June82fre in
accordance with th€orporations Act 200lincluding:

0] giving a true and fair view of the consolidatedityrg financial position as at 30 June 2018 andt®f
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards &@watporations Regulations 2001

the financial statements and notes also comply lmittrnational Financial Reporting Standards aslakscl in
note 2.2.

there are reasonable grounds to believe that thep@wmynwill be able to pay its debts as and when bezpme
due and payable.

this declaration has been made after receivingéctarations required to be made to the Directoescordance
with Section 295A of th€orporations Act 200for the financial year ended 30 June 2018.

as at the date of this declaration, there are nedde grounds to believe that the members of theddi@roup
identified in note 11 will be able to meet any ghlions or liabilities to which they are or may bee subject,
by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee.

On behalf of the Board

GL Sim

Chairman/Group Managing Director
28 September 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Zicom Group Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Zicom Group Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the Group), which comprises the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 June 2018, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the Directors’ Declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:

Q) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2018 and of its consolidated financial performance for the year ended on that date; and

D) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial report of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, but we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Report section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial report.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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1. Assessment of the carrying value of the intangible assets, property, plant and equipment
and investments in associates

Refer to Notes 9, 10 and 12 of the financial report

Why significant How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Directors’ assessment of the Our audit procedures included the following:

recoverability of the Group's intangible
assets of S$14.6 million, inclusive of
goodwill of S$7.2 million, property, plant
and equipment of S$21.3 million and
investments in associates of S$8.8 million,
involves significant judgments and
assumptions about the progress and future
results of the Cash Generating Units
("CGUs™) of the Group.

An impairment assessment of goodwill is
carried out annually, while finite life
intangible, property, plant and equipment
and investments in associates are assessed
for indicators of impairment. In respect of
goodwill, impairment testing was performed
by the Group as disclosed in Note 10.

The Group addressed the recoverability of
investments in associates by way of an
impairment model which valued the
individual investments where an indicator of
impairment was identified.

Due to the range of judgments and
assumptions used in the impairment models
(such as cash flow forecasts, growth rates,
discount rates, timing of cash flows, market
share assumptions and margins) and
assessments, as well as the significant
carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and
investments in associates (39% of total
assets), this was considered to be a Key
Audit Matter.

As disclosed in Note 10 of the financial
report, the impairment models are sensitive
to growth rate, margin, timing of cash flows
and discount rate which, if not achieved,
could reasonably be expected to give rise to
impairment charges in the future.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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We assessed the CGU to which the goodwill was
allocated and, the assumptions and
methodologies used by the Group in the value-in-
use impairment models.

We evaluated the Group's assessment for
indicators of impairment. In doing so, we
considered the CGUs business performance and
associated results for the year, market conditions
and expected future results. Where indicators of
impairment were identified, we assessed the
Group's value-in-use models for the CGU, as
outlined below. We also assessed the useful life of
each finite life asset in the context of the
expected future period of economic consumption.

We assessed the Directors’ cash flow forecast
assumptions supporting their recoverability
assessments, being forecast orders, market
performance and expected growth, the level of
new business wins, timing of cash flows and the
planned margin growth capabilities. Where
applicable, we considered the historical reliability
of the Group's cash flow forecasting process.

We evaluated the key assumptions including the
discount rates and terminal growth rates used in
the impairment assessments. We involved our
valuation specialists to assess the discount rates
and long term growth rates applied in the models.
For some businesses in the precision engineering
and technology segment we also assessed
multiples of comparable companies.

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key
assumptions above to ascertain the extent of
change in those assumptions that either
individually or collectively would be significantly
different to the Directors’ conclusion.

We assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the notes to the financial report.
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2. Accounting for investment in Curiox

Refer to Note 12 of the financial report
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Group, through its subsidiary Zicom Holding e evaluated the Group’s assessment of the

Pte Limited, holds 72.28% (PY 73.02%) in Curiox treatment for the investment in Curiox. This included
Biosystems'Pte Ltd (“.Curiox”) ' understanding the Articles of Curiox to assess

whether the Group’s rights under the Articles do not
The Group continued to consider Curiox as an provide control over Curiox.

associate entity and applied the equity method
of accounting for its interest in Curiox in
accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards. This requires significant judgment
and reassessment for any changes in the
shareholdings and the Articles of Association of
Curiox ("the Articles™).

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure
of the nature and risks associated with Curiox and
the summarised financial information included in the
financial report.

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company's 2018 Annual Report other than the financial report and our
auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the Directors’ Report that is to be included in the Annual
Report, prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the
Annual Report after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception of the Remuneration Report
and our related assurance opinion.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial report. We also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events and conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the disclosures in
the financial report about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify the opinion on the financial report. However, future events or conditions may cause an
entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial report. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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From the matters communicated to the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial report of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Audit of the Remuneration Report
Opinion on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 12 to 18 of the Directors' Report for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Zicom Group Limited for the year ended 30 June 2018,
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

é/mﬁﬁ i %ﬂﬂ

Ernst & Young

Tom du Preez
Partner

Brisbane

28 September 2018

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation



Zicom Group Limited

Information on Shareholdings
As at 27 September 2018

Distribution of Equity Securities

a) Analysis of numbers of equity security holdeysstze of holding:

Ordinary Shares Number of Holders
1 - 1,000 6,993 59
1,001 - 5,000 625,075 172
5,001 - 10,000 1,969,823 219
10,001 - 100,000 12,611,929 359
100,001 and over 201,926,960 106
217,140,780 915

b)  There were 258 holders of less than a marketsdieel of ordinary shares.
Twenty Largest Equity Security Holders

The names of the twenty largest equity securitgéia are listed below:

Number of Percentage of
Name Ordinary Shares Held Issued Shares
SNS HOLDINGS PTE LTD 87,514,360 40.30%
JUAT KOON SIM 11,778,172 5.42%
GIOK LAK SIM 13,752,777 6.34%
VENTRADE (ASIA) PTE LTD 8,478,344 3.90%
HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 7,527,184 37%
JUAT LIM SIM 6,487,767 2.99%
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 5,631,230 2.59%
BNP PARIBAS NOMS (NZ) LTD 4,703,153 2.17%
MR MAKRAM HANNA & MRS RITA HANNA 4,428,975 2.04%
J P MORGAN NOMINEES AUSTRALIA LIMITED 2,815,634 1.30
EE GEK GOH 2,791,017 1.29%
SIONG TECK NG 2,410,665 1.11%
HUNG SEAH TANG 2,100,839 0.97%
JUAT KHIANG SIM 2,069,525 0.95%
FIRST CHARNOCK SUPERANNUATION PTY LTD 1,890,000 0.87%
KOK HWEE SIM 1,488,180 0.69%
DEBUSCEY PTY LTD 1,355,615 0.62%
KOK YEW SIM 1,350,253 0.62%
MR CHUAN GAO 1,338,820 0.62%
BNP PARIBAS NOMINEES PTY LTD 1,227,018 0.57%

Substantial Shareholders

Substantial shareholders in the company (holdingless than 5% of the issued capital), as disclosesubstantial
shareholder notices given to the company, arewgeialow:

Number of Percentage of
Name Ordinary Shares Held Issued Shares
GIOK LAK SIM & HIS ASSOCIATES 101,267,137 46.64%
JUAT KOON SIM & HIS ASSOCIATES 14,569,189 6.71%

Voting Rights

On a show of hands, every member present in pansby proxy shall have one vote and, upon a paltheshare shall
have one vote.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Giok Lak Sim (Chairman and Managing Director)
Kok Hwee Sim  (Executive Director)

Kok Yew Sim (Executive Director)
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